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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Statement of Profit or Loss and Bz R EHAMEEEAK Year ended 31 December
Other Comprehensive Income BE+T-A=+t—HLEFE
RMB million
AREBET
2016 2015 Changes
—E—RF —T—hHF e
Revenue from continuing operations S E TSNS 580.7 491.2 18.2%
Gross profit from continuing operations 48 48 & % 75 E 5| 167.2 141.4 18.2%
Profit before tax B 35 BT A 110.3 82.4 33.9%
Profit from continuing operations S S TS s 88.6 63.8 38.8%
Profit for the year F AT 88.6 64.2 38.1%
Profit attributable to shareholders of ZN/NE Vi E g
the Company 79.1 56.2 40.7%
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BASIC ~ BRAF (ARE D) EAX
— continuing operations —FHEEEET 19.8 14.0 41.4%
— discontinued operation — IR PR TS - 0.1 N/A i@ B
— combined ) 19.8 14.1 40.4%
Profit attributable to shareholders of AN B R R FE AR S )
the Company (excluding (REFARMEMEZ L)
share-based payments) 86.9 60.4 43.9%
Dividend per share (HK cents) AR A% B (L)
— interim —FR HA 3.0 2.0
~ final — R 35 3.0
— combined ) 6.5 5.0 30.0%

31 December

Statement of Financial Position SRR TR +=RA=+—H
RMB million
ARBBHEETT

2016 2015 Changes
—E-RF —F-AfF )
Non-current assets EMEEE 188.3 183.0 2.9%
Current assets BN EE 484.5 363.7 33.2%
Current liabilities mEEeE (158.4) (111.0) 42.7%
Net current assets MBEEFE 326.1 252.7 29.0%
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (17.2) (15.6) 10.4%
Net assets FEE 497.2 420.1 18.4%
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Gross Profit Margin of the Group
SEEFR=E
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Gross Profit Margin by Business Segment
EBoMEMNR
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Revenue by Business Segment
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Group Structure
KEZEEER

As at 31 December 2016 R=_FT—~F+-_A=+—H

Ever Thrive Global Limited
HERRRERARE

(Incorporated in BVI)

51.62%

Public Shareholders

AT

48.38%

Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited
KB MBI BRAT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands)
(RF2 fAkaz)

Yongsheng Advanced
Materials (BVI) Limited
KERFM R (BVI) BFR AT

(Incorporated in BVI)
(REB B S

Yongsheng Advanced
Materials (HK) Limited
KERFTARH(FB) BRAT]
(Incorporated in HK)

(RB BT )

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng
Dyeing and Finishing
Co. Limited*

Nantong Yongsheng
Management Shareholders

MEKREERRR

Hangzhou Shining
3D Tech Co., Ltd.*
MMER=ERNZRG
BRAR

830978

Jiangsu Yongsheng 3D
Printing Advanced Materials
Company Limited*

TLER K BR = ST ENFT AR
BRARE
(Establi i

(®

HUVIS Corporation
HEFLHUVIS

(Established in Korea)

(FARIFEAK L)

Nantong Yongsheng
Fiber Advanced Materials
Co. Limited*

MR KRBERMEBRAT
(Established in PRC)

(AR BRI )

Jiangsu Yongsheng High
Polymer Advanced Materials
Research Institute
Company Limited*

SIE KBRS D FHME 70%
MEAERAE]

(Established in PRC)
(R

* For identification purposes only

* B
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Yongsheng Advanced Materials”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 (the “Review Period”).

Over the last year, the economic development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) slowed down and the gross domestic product
of the PRC grew by approximately 6.7% on year-on-year basis which
was the lowest in the past 26 years. Meanwhile, there were some
turbulence in the international political arena and fluctuation in the
global financial market. The price of crude oil, being one of the major
raw materials in the chemical fiber industry, began to increase from its
record low. However, the polyester filament yarn industry benefiting
from the (i) apparent achievement of the PRC government’s policies
addressing overcapacity and de-stocking; and (i) increase in export of
downstream textile products driven by the depreciation of Renminbi,
the polyester filament yarn industry managed to achieve a stable
growth in the domestic demand for polyester filament yarns. Despite
the challenging operating environment, the Group accomplished the
targets it set in 2016 by focusing on differentiated products with special
features and higher gross profit margin, expanding the production scale
to cater for market needs and improving production efficiency. During
the Review Period , driven by the satisfactory business performance,
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
increased by approximately 40.7% to approximately RMB79.1 million
and profit attributable to Shareholders (excluding share-based payments)
increased by approximately 43.9% to approximately RMB86.9 million. In
recognition of the support of the Shareholders, the Board recommends
the payment of final dividend of HK$3.5 cents per share. Together with
the interim dividend paid of HK$3 cents per share, the total dividend for
the 2016 financial year is HK$6.5 cents per share.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EREHRE

Li Cheng Z &
Chairman and Executive Director
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

SEEKING BREAKTHROUGH BY INNOVATION
AND MAXIMIZING SCALE BY LEVERAGING
ON THE MOMENTUM

The Group focused on broadening the income base by increasing
its production capacity, upgrading the production equipment and
enhancing production efficiency during the Review Period. Since
differentiated polyester filament yarns possess special features and have
a wide scope of applications, its market demand has been increasing.
Therefore, differentiated polyester filament yarns become the focus
of the Company’s production capacity expansion plan. Regarding
the production of polyester filament yarn, Nantong Yongsheng Fiber
Advanced Materials Company Limited (“Nantong Yongsheng”) had
completed the installation of three new production lines and the related
technical upgrades of two extra production lines in 2015. For Hangzhou
Huvis Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Company Limited (“Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber”), an addition of 11 units of production equipment were
put into operation in the second half of 2016, together with the expansion
of production workshop, the annual production capacity of polyester
filament yarn was increased by approximately 13.3% to approximately
34,000 tonnes. With respect to the dyeing and processing segment,
Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing and Finishing Company Limited
(“Yongsheng Dyeing”) added an extra production line in April 2016 to
increase the annual production capacity by nearly 20% to approximately
57.0 million meters. Yongsheng Dyeing also added a number of new
equipment in order to enhance production efficiencies and to meet the
demand of different kinds of customers. The adaptation of energy saving
and water-recycling initiatives as well as the use of natural gas for the
generation of steam during production significantly reduced production
costs. The decrease in production cost contributed to the high gross
profit margin of the dyeing and processing segment of approximately
46.0% and an increase in the overall gross profit margin.

RIFTREH, F2ERE

RREFHED [BIF KR, T EAER] BER
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Yongsheng Advanced Materials has been striving to seek breakthroughs
on product development. By developing unique products with high
quality and high profit margin, Yongsheng Advanced Materials reinforced
its competitive edges in production and pricing and solidify its leading
position in the chemical fiber market. In order to diversify its products,
some test equipment was introduced to the polyester filament yarn
production business and dyeing and processing business of the Group.
Under the relentless efforts of the research and development staff of the
Group, the Group obtained 10 utility model patents during the Review
Period. The newly-developed differentiated ultrafine fibers — “Nylon
Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Leather-feel Velvet Fabric” and “Ultrafine
Fabric Filament and Naked Chammy Fabric” were granted national
invention patents due to the fact that they can be widely applied to
household, adornment and garment areas and achieve the energy-saving
and environmental protection at the same time. Three of the members
of the Group were accredited as “National High and New Technology
Enterprises”, Nantong Yongsheng was accredited as Municipal-
Level Research and Development Center of Engineering Technology,
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber was accredited as Municipal Research &
Development Center and Yongsheng Dyeing was also accredited as
Municipal-Level Research and Development Center. The recognition of
the Group as the National Base of the Differential Fibers and Dyeing and
Weaving Product Development and the vice-chairman unit of the Chinese
Chemical Fiber Association serves as a strong proof to the Group’s
strong research and development capacity and an implies a more self-
determined role of the Group in future development and planning.

i

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FRE®E
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

The leading position of the Group’s research and development and
substantial expansion of production capacity and efficiency enable us
to establish a responsive and innovative research and development
industrial chain, which significantly reduce the time required between
polymerization of raw materials and new product delivery, and enable
fast mass production of various popular products such as the SST, CEY,
SQH-X, CEH series, knitwear-type polyester filament yarn, dyed and
processed D400 elastic shammy, wrinkled shammy and polyester-nylon
shammy. By leveraging on its advantages as a first mover, the Group is
adaptable to market demands, which enables the Group to enlarge its
clients base and to improve its profitability.

ENDLESS TECHNOLOGY WITH INFINITE
INNOVATION

Although the production volume of the chemical fibers in the PRC
accounted for two-thirds of total production volume worldwide, there
have not been enough products with high technique content to satisfy
the market needs for differentiated products. To address the above
issue, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and the
National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC issued the
“Guidance Opinion on the Development of Chemical Fiber Industry under
13th Five-year Plan” in late 2016 which emphasized on issues such as
self-innovation capacity, target growth rate of average 15% regarding
the number of invention patents approval, development of small and
medium enterprises, provision of tailor-made, differentiated and multi-
functional products and services to satisfy the demand from the clothing
and household textile sectors. Yongsheng Advanced Materials, which
has enjoyed its leading role in research and development and market
development over its peers, will continue to develop different kinds of
original products with high value-added, diversified and tailor-made
features.

BT R - I ERIRIRA 2 B MAEERE
LEAEBAFA R ER RO HAI N EERE
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To conform with the policies of the PRC government, the Group has
collaborated with, among others, Jiangnan University and Donghua
University in an industry-university-research project to conduct a key
research on “Key Technology for the Production of Highly-stabilized
Textiles” under the 13th Five-year Plan of the PRC government. The
Group also signed a cooperation agreement with China Textile Academy,
the most authoritative research and development institute in the textile
industry in the PRC, to develop the key technologies and equipment
for “Bi-component Composite Elastic Filament”. It is believed that the
cooperation with the elites in the academic filed will bring breakthrough
to the Group’s research and development and enable the production of
more diversified high value-added products to satisfy market needs.

Apart from emphasizing the development of new technology and new
products, the Group will focus on the expansion of its production scale,
in particular, those related to the differentiated products in 2017. In
August 2016, Nantong Yongsheng entered into an investment agreement
with Nantong Economic Technology Development Area Management
Committee in relation to a development project of a type of differentiated
composite and functional fiber: “Bio-based Highly Stabilized Elastic
Polyester-based Composite Fiber”. The project is expected to be
completed in June 2017 and the annual production capacity of
differentiated polyester filament yarn will increase by approximately
32.4% to approximately 45,000 tonnes. It is expected that the expansion
of annual production capacity can promptly resolve the under-supply
problem in the market. With the Group’s solid research and development
capacity and the leading position of Yongsheng Advanced Materials in
the industry will further be fortified.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

Recently, the global economy faced multiple challenges and is unstable.
Nevertheless, leveraged on the excellent management team, the financial
strengths of the Group and the effective risk control measures, the Group
is confident to overcome the fierce challenges in the future. The Group
will expand its business scope along the industrial chain of polyester
filament yarn based on the established operations and look out for
potential merger and acquisition opportunities or restructuring projects in
all directions to make the best use of the resources from other enterprises
and expand its own scale and competence for continuous growth.

In the coming year, the Group will adhere to the corporate philosophy
of “Honesty, Cooperation, Reciprocity, Innovation and Learning” and
insist on providing innovative products, seeking quality customers and
maintaining healthy business practices in order to become a world-
class enterprise. | hereby express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the
Board to our management, our staff, the Shareholders and our business
partners for their continuous support.

Li Cheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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MARKET REVIEW

The global economy faced multiple challenges in 2016, including political
incidents such as the BREXIT vote in June and the presidential election in
the United States of America in November. In addition, the drop in annual
growth rate of the gross domestic product in the PRC to approximately
6.7%, its lowest in 26 years, the continuous depreciation of Renminbi and
the rebound of crude oil price had all contributed to a complicated and
changing business operating environment. The integration of the textile
industry in the PRC accelerated the transformation and upgrade of the
industry. Leveraged on the Group’s relentless technical innovation and
expanded production capacity, the Group managed to deliver excellent
results continuously by effectively responding to market challenges and
opportunities, and successfully fortified its position in the high value-
added synthetic fiber and textile market during the Review Period.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the Review Period, the Group had breakthroughs in product
development. The Group obtained patents for its newly-developed
“Nylon Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Leather-feel Velvet Fabric” and
“Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Naked Shammy Fabric” during the
Review Period. The newly-patented products are mainly applied to high-
end fashion leather-like fabrics, household cloth, decoration materials,
shoes and hats, luggage cases and handbags. The Nylon Ultrafine
Fabric Filament and Leather-Feel Velvet Fabric are manufactured with
lower temperature printing and dyeing methods which significantly
reduced energy consumption and emissions, as compared with
the manufacturing of regular polyester ultrafine fiber. Meanwhile, the
microfiber filaments of Ultrafine Fabric and Naked Shammy Fabric
require less or no dyestuff in production result in less or no sewage being
discharged during the production process. The two patented products
illustrated the mixture of new fiber material development technology
and energy-saving technology which achieves product innovation and
environmental protection simultaneously. The Group was renowned for
its relentless innovation, and was recognised as a national base of the
differential fibers and dyeing product development and the vice-chairman
unit of the Chinese Chemical Fiber Association during the Review Period.
Nantong Yongsheng was also granted additional tax benefits as it was
accredited for the first time as a National High and New Technology
Enterprise in 2015.
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E 3 )

™ 5 [ B

—E-REF EREEmERRELER  RZTRE
ARMAARBEFERARKR  +—AXBEERAE  +
BB A 4 EE A B IR SR T B 226F K AR H96.7%
ARBEZE ST RmEREELRESE
RERREMZE  BANGBETHEES IR
EXREIT R NEETE S T &M A R E s
BAEREHTESNRBREE RKWE_FT—X
FERENSEECHANEGT SO X HEIE
ERE-

EBRE

OB A - AN SR B = R AP B =40 8 S 3 4 AR
MER SR)ENMERGRALE: QZMEK
MEHAERINT: QMR RHE D ER: K(4)3D
TTENFIM B E - B B NEE ST NEM - HE
FERAEBESEL ETHEERRENBE T K
SEFRATRIF KRB T LRE] WKL B
TR EE fm 1 3% 70 T ERAS 2R A% < TR 35 0 [FE RE B AR A
YN EEFEARESERERAENEE - THEHNE
mEERARBEREABIKER RHHE K
HME B TTERERTFREAL - ERRBASE
RARKEABMREBLEE R KeBAdeERre R
B2 ENRTTE - RIEFRAKBETR B RE R Rl T AR AR A
RGN EBERENEMOBERGBMET MK
ARRDAREE £EBRETAIRDREITKE
HEn EEEZTHN - MABREHAERN G S S
A FL B0 5 35 Rl A0 8P BE BR AR AT - O EE R BT Y
R BHRRGERE TH AL E T HERNEE
ERTERTHRA DBEFAERIXBEXZER
bR ABERMEEY PELCEH SIS R
B -MR_T-AFERES [BRASHEIME
X ERHNmEBKESTRBINHBEES -

ABRFMERARAT 20164 13



BUSINESS REVIEW
EBERE

During the Review Period, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately RMB580.7 million, which represented an increase of
approximately 18.2% from approximately RMB491.2 million in 2015.
In the meantime, the Group recorded gross profit of approximately
RMB167.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 18.2%
from approximately RMB141.4 million in 2015, and gross profit margin
remained stable at approximately 28.8% during the Review Period. The
results were mainly contributed by the Group’s strategy to focus on
differentiated polyester filament yarn products, which are with higher
profit margin, as well as an increase in production capacity by investing
more resources to accommodate the increasing demand in the market.
At the same time, the profit margin of the dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester fabric segment further improved due to the
technical edges of the Group. All these contributed to the growth of the
Group’s overall profitability. As a result of the above, the Group recorded
profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company of approximately
RMB79.1 million during the Review Period, representing an increase
of approximately 40.7% from approximately RMB56.2 million for 2015.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (excluding share-
based payments) increased by approximately 43.9% to approximately
RMB86.9 million as compared to the same in 2015. Earnings per share
was approximately RMB0.198 (2015: approximately RMBO0.141).

During the Review Period, revenue derived from the three business
segments: (1) production of polyester filament yarns and the new 3D
printing materials; (2) the dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester
filament fabric; and (3) trading of polyester filament yarns accounted for
approximately 65.0%, 30.3% and 4.7% of the Group’s total revenue,
respectively. Operating profit of the three business segments accounted
for approximately 50.5%, 48.9% and 0.6% of the Group’s operating
profit, respectively.
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PRODUCTION OF POLYESTER FILAMENT
YARNS

The Group produces and sells regular and differentiated polyester
filament yarns. Differentiated polyester filament yarn is a type of synthetic
fiber that carries special features such as dry, elastic and wrinkle-free.
It is widely used in the production of end-products including high-end
garments, sportswear and household products. Since its gross profit
margin is higher than regular polyester filament yarn products, it is the
major revenue source and major development focus of this segment.
Nantong Yongsheng and Yongsheng Chemical Fiber, which are
recognised as “National High and New Technology Enterprises”, are the
production bases of the polyester flament yarns of the Group. In 2016,
the two production bases were accredited as Municipal-Level Research
and Development Center of Engineering Technology and Municipal-Level
Research and Development Center, respectively.

Revenue derived from the polyester filament yarn production segment
accounted for approximately 64.9% of the Group’s revenue during the
Review Period, which increased substantially by approximately 21.7%
to approximately RMB377.1 million over the Review Period. Revenue
derived from differentiated polyester filament yarn products contributed
approximately 94.7% of the revenue of this segment during the Review
Period, comparing with approximately 85.1% in 2015, whereas the share
of segment revenue derived from regular polyester filament yarn products
decreased to approximately 5.3% from approximately 14.9% in 2015.
Gross profit margin of the polyester filament yarn production segment
maintained at a high level of approximately 22.7% during the Review
Period. The growth in overall gross profit was caused by (i) the Group’s
continuous focus on the production and sale of differentiated polyester
filament yarn products which have higher profit margin; (i) expansion
in production capacity; and (iii) capture of business opportunities by
launching new products timely.
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During the Review Period, the utilisation rate of machineries of Nantong
Yongsheng was improved by the operation of the five differentiated
polyester filament yarn production lines, which were built or upgraded
in 2015, at their full capacities and the installation of a new circular
knitting machine and the addition and upgrade of two extra production
lines. In relation to Yongsheng Chemical Fiber, the addition of 11 units of
new production equipment and the expansion of production workshop
significantly expanded production outputs. The Group has also continued
developing new products with innovative technology to fill the gaps
in the market. During the Review Period, since the launch of the SST,
CEY, SQH-X and CEH series, the knitting series of polyester filament
yarns, the dyed and processed D400 elastic shammy, wrinkled shammy
and polyester-nylon shammy, they have been widely sought after by
customers since their launch and have soon achieved mass production.

To maintain its competitive edges, the Group has been conducting
scientific researches on high quality products continuously and worked
in collaboration with Jiangnan University, Donghua University, Lutai
Textile Joint Stock Company Limited and other leading enterprises in the
industry during the Review Period in relation to a key research on “Key
Technology for the Production of Highly-stabilized Textiles” under the
183th Five-year Plan of the PRC government. The Group also signed a
cooperation agreement with China Textile Academy and other key players
in the industry to develop the key technologies and equipment for “Bi-
component Composite Elastic Filament”, with an aim to maintain the
leading position of the Group in the industry.

REVENUE ANALYSIS: PFY PRODUCTION
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DYEING AND PROCESSING OF
DIFFERENTIATED POLYESTER FILAMENT
YARN

Yongsheng Dyeing was accredited as a “National High and New
Technology Enterprise”. It was further accredited as an Municipal-level
Technological Center during the Review Period.

The segment revenue derived from the polyester filament yarn dyeing
and processing business slightly decreased to approximately RMB175.8
million, being approximately 0.6% year-on-year. Gross profit derived
from the segment, however, increased by approximately 14.8% year-
on-year reaching approximately RMB80.8 million in 2016. Gross profit
margin increased substantially by approximately 6.2% to 46.0% during
the Review Period. The substantial increase in gross profit margin was
mainly caused by the unique dyeing and processing techniques of the
Group, which brought the Group advantage in pricing. During the Review
Period, the Group further improved its factory facilities by adding a new
production line and supporting equipment in April 2016. The relentless
technological upgrade and stable number of orders also enhanced
the overall economies of scale. The adaptation of energy saving and
water-recycling initiatives as well as the replacement of coal by natural
gas for the generation of steam during production significantly reduced
production costs. Such measures did not only contribute to higher
profit margin, but also illustrated that the Group has undertaken more
corporate social responsibilities in relation to environment preservation.

REVENUE ANALYSIS: DYEING AND PROCESSING
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PRODUCTION OF 3D PRINTING NEW
MATERIALS

The new material industry is one of the PRC’s seven strategic new
industries and one of the top ten priority industries of “Made in China
2025”. The PRC will focus on the development of new materials, such
as 3D printing and biomimetics intelligence in the future. As mentioned in
the “Guiding Opinions for the Comprehensive and In-depth Promotion of
Education Information during the 13th Five-year Plan period (Comments
Draft)” published by the Ministry of Education of the PRC in 2015, the
“Exploration of STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and
Mathematics) and Creative Education” is an important item. Recently,
many educational institutions pay close attention to the application of 3D
printing technology, as they believe 3D printing technology would inspire
students’ imagination. Therefore, it is expected that there are enormous
business opportunities for 3D printing in the future.

Jiangsu Yongsheng 3D Printing Advanced Materials Company Limited
(“Yongsheng 3D Printing”), a joint venture company of the Group
has developed PLA printing materials. This material is environmentally-
friendly, non-toxic and with not much odour. It is suitable for home,
secondary and primary education. The Group has developed several
product series that carry special features, such as the luminous, colour-
changing and carbon fiber series to cater the creative education trend in
PRC and other parts of the world. The 3D printing materials production
business of the Group began to generate revenue since the fourth quarter
of 2015. During the Review Period, the 3D printing materials production
business grew steadily and recorded revenue and gross profit margin of
approximately RMB354,000 and 35.6%, respectively.
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PROSPECTS

We expect the global market will remain volatile due to the change in
the policies in a number of countries in 2017. The Group will closely
monitor the market conditions and prudently capture the opportunities
brought by the rising demand in upgraded and high quality products in
the PRC market. In the coming year, the Group will emphasise on product
innovation, capacity expansions, risk control and service upgrade.

In terms of innovation, the Group has continued to innovate at the
technical, management and product level. Through its own research and
development and cooperation with other parties, the Group will increase
its unique market value and competitiveness, exert its core competitive
edges and explore the potentials of the synthetic fiber market. In terms
of production capacity, in light of the undersupply market condition, the
Group will keep investing in production capacity and explore measures
and strategies to improve efficiency so as to satisfy the market demand.
In August 2016, the Group entered into an investment agreement
with Nantong Economic Technology Development Area Management
Committee in relation to a development project of a type of differentiated
composite and functional fiber: “Bio-based Highly Stabilized Elastic
Polyester-based Composite Fiber” with an estimated extra annual
production capacity of around 11,000 tonnes. The total investment
amount of the project is approximately RMB100 million and the project
is expected to be completed in June 2017. Under the trend of industrial
integration and upgrade, the Group is actively exploring business
opportunities along the synthetic fibers and textile production chains,
and identifying investment projects that can create synergy with existing
businesses in order to enlarge the scale of the Group and the maximise
interests of the shareholders of the Company. At the same time, the
Group will strictly follow the risk control policies and guard against policy
and operational risks to ensure smooth operation and to cope with the
rapid changing market together with our customers and create greater
value for them.

In 2017, the Group will continue to consolidate its established business
foundation and advantages, capture investment opportunities around
the world, act in the best interests of the shareholders of the Company,
implement pragmatic and effective strategies and aim at achieving
sustainable development and maximizing shareholders’ benefit.
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Revenue and gross profit WHENEF

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and TR AEBEE-_E—RNFE+_A=+—HItF
gross profit by the Group’s business segment for the year ended 31 EANEBRERDPEI DB E R EFBHA:

December 2016:
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+-HLEE
2016 2015

— N % of sales —T—AfF % of sales
RMB’000 IREHEREM RMB'000 HIHEEN
Revenue U 3% AR¥T T BOk ARETT ERalid
1) Production 1) EE 377,469 65.0% 310,024 63.1%
- Polyester filament yarn (‘PFY”) e ((ReE#A]) 377,115 64.9% 309,936 63.1%
- 3D printing materials —ZHITEDM R 354 0.1% 88 =
2) Dyeing and processing QFERMT 175,781 30.3% 176,863 36.0%
3) Trading of PFY ) KmEHEH 27,401 4.7% 4,278 0.9%
580,651 100.0% 491,165 100.0%

Revenue of the Group in 2016 was approximately RMB580.7 million, REBR-_Z—NEHREL A A R¥580,700,000
representing an increase of approximately 18.2% as compared with I B iig MEI18.2% - REBYZRIEMEER 4
the previous year. The increase in revenue of the Group was mainly EXEBE R GaREHE SEBHREED B i’])\E“ﬁ%
contributed by the increase in revenue derived from the production 67,400,0007T X% A R #23,100,0007CFr 8 - M5 B 2
business and the trading of PFY business of approximately RMB67.4 BT S HIES R D O AREE, 1OO OOOE?EE%*E
million and approximately RMB23.1 million, respectively, which was FE REBROHTORZEEFBENR TN DM -
partially offset by the decrease in revenue derived from the dyeing and

processing by approximately RMB1.1 million. Details of the fluctuations

of revenue in each business segment were discussed separately in the

section below.

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=+-HLEE

2016  Gross Profit 2015 Gross Profit

—~"E Margin —Z—FF Margin

RMB’000 EFE RMB’000 ERE

Gross profit EF ARBT R % AR®BFT %
1) Production 1) 85,739 22.7% 70,768 22.8%
- PFY — i R4 85,613 22.7% 70,740 22.8%

— 3D printing materials —ZHEITEIM B 126 35.6% 28 31.8%
2) Dyeing and processing AZ3ERMT 80,784 46.0% 70,341 39.8%
3) Trading of PFY 3) RmRMHE S 682 2.5% 314 7.3%
167,205 28.8% 141,423 28.8%
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Gross profit of the Group in 2016 was approximately RMB167.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 18.2% as compared with
the previous year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in gross profit of approximately RMB15.0 million and approximately
RMB10.4 million derived from the Group’s production business and
dyeing and processing business, respectively. Details of the fluctuations
of gross profit in each business segment were discussed separately in the
section below.

1) Production

a) PFY production

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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REBRZZT—NEFHNENOAEARKE167,200,000
T B EFEMNL18.2% c EFIEMEBRA A EEH
SEEBURZAERMTESHEFR D RIE MO A
R #15,000,0007T & £ A & #10,400,0007T T 8 °
BEBDBNEFNEHFBERTEH O HTR-

1) 4£E
a) WHEHLE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015

—E-RE % of sales —E-RF % of sales
RMB’000 RS EBEN RMB'000 hHEER
Revenue & AR®T ERald ARET T B
Differentiated =Rt 357,311 94.7% 263,862 85.1%
Regular BR 19,804 5.3% 46,074 14.9%
377,115 100.0% 309,936 100.0%

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=t+—-HLEE
2016 Gross Profit 2015 Gross Profit
—E-RE Margin —E-RF Margin
RMB’000 EFIE RMB'000 EIES
Gross Profit ER AR¥T T % ARETTT %
Differentiated =5t 83,045 23.2% 63,077 23.9%
Regular w=H 2,568 13.0% 7,663 16.6%
85,613 22.7% 70,740 22.8%

Revenue and gross profit derived from the PFY production
business for the Review Period were approximately
RMB377.1 million and approximately RMB85.6 million,
respectively, representing an increase of approximately
21.7% and approximately 21.0% respectively as compared
with the previous year, and were mainly attributable to the
following:

T RHEEEEBROBEF RN R
EFo B4 A AR E377,100,0007T & 4
AR #85,600,0007t * & A F 5 5l _EF4
21.7% 5 4921.0% EBEEAR THAZE:
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The increase in the Group’s sale of PFY by approximately
RMB67.2 million for the Review Period was mainly
attributable to the increase in the sale of differentiated
products of approximately RMB93.4 million, offset by the
decrease in the sale of regular products of approximately
RMB26.3 million. In line with the Group’s strategy to
focus on differentiated products with higher gross profit
margin, the percentage of the revenue derived from the
sale of differentiated PFY increased from approximately
85.1% in 2015 to approximately 94.7% for the Review
Period. The Group’s gross profit margin remained stable at
approximately 22.7% for the Review Period.

i) The average selling price of differentiated PFY
decreased slightly from RMB15,600/tonne to
RMB14,600/tonne as the Group lowered the price
of differentiated products in order to secure more
market share in view of the unstable commodities
market. Sales volume of differentiated PFY increased
by approximately 45.1% from 16,864 tonnes in 2015
to 24,465 tonnes in 2016. Due to the increase in
the demand for premium grade PFYs, in particular
SPH, SQH and REN Series, and the increase in sales
volume has a stronger impact than the decrease in
selling price, the Group’s revenue for differentiated
PFY, as a result, increased in 2016. The Group also
promoted new products, such as SST, CEY, SQH-X
and CEH Series during the Review Period. Since a
significant portion of cost of sales comprised of raw
material costs for PET chips and POY, the general
decrease in raw material price decreased the Group’s
cost of sale. The Group maintained a stable gross
profit margin for differentiated PFY of approximately
23.2% for the Review Period, as compared to
approximately 23.9% in 2015 for the same.
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b)

Sales volume of regular PFY decreased by
approximately 52.8% from 4,917 tonnes in 2015 to
2,320 tonnes in 2016. In line with the Group’s strategy
to focus on differentiated products, it keeps its sale
of regular products at a relatively low level during
the Review Period. The Group produced and sold
regular products mainly for the purpose of utilizing its
production facilities to maximise the usage of the plant
and machineries and to share manufacturing fixed
costs, such as depreciation of plant and equipment.
The decrease in the Group’s gross profit margin for
regular PFY of approximately 13.0% for the Review
Period, as compared to approximately 16.6% in 2015
in the regular PFY, was mainly because the Group
produced and sold certain types of regular PFY which
had lower gross profit margin.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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3D printing materials production b) ZH#HITAMBLEE
2016 2015
S T84
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Revenue Wz 354 88
Gross profit EAH 126 28
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 35.6% 31.8%

In the 4th quarter of 2015, the Group commenced the
production and sale of 3D printing materials sample to its
joint venture partner, namely Shining 3D Tech Co. Limited.
In 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB354,000 (2015: approximately RMB88,000), with the
sales volume of approximately 2.7 tonne (2015: 1 tonne) and
gross profit margin of approximately 35.6% (2015: 31.8%).

R-ZE-RFENF AEERBAEA

BEERBHMMNER=EMERNERA
BIAEEMEE @M BER - R =F
— N AEEEFIEH ARE354,000
T (ZE—RF: HHARKSS,0007T) ' #4
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2) Dyeing and processing

2) FERMNT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015

ZE-RE % of sales “T-hE % of sales
RMB’000 RHEEN RMB'000 HHEREN
Revenue & AR¥ETR Eald ARETT Bk
Processing activity MIEE 139,895 79.6% 132,479 74.9%
Direct sales BEREHEE 35,886 20.4% 44,384 251%
175,781 100.0% 176,863 100.0%

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE
2016 Gross Profit 2015 Gross Profit
—E-RE Margin —E—AfF Margin
RMB’000 EFIE RMB'000 EFIES
Gross Profit EF ARET % ARETFTT %
Processing activity MIES 76,718 54.8% 65,140 49.2%
Direct sales BEEHE 4,066 11.3% 5,201 11.7%
80,784 46.0% 70,341 39.8%

Revenue and gross profit derived from dyeing and processing
business in 2016 were approximately RMB175.8 million and
approximately RMB80.8 million, respectively, for the Review Period,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.6% and an increase of
approximately 14.8%, respectively, as compared with the previous
year. Such changes were mainly attributable to the following:

i) Processing volume in dyeing and processing activity
increased from approximately 38,007,000 meters in 2015
to approximately 38,752,000 meters in 2016 due to the
increase in the number of processing orders the Group
received during the Review Period. The average processing
income increased from approximately RMB3.5/meter in
2015 to approximately RMB3.6/meter in 2016. We achieved
a record high gross profit margin of approximately 54.8% in
2016 as compared to approximately 49.2% in 2015 in the
processing activity. The increase in gross profit margin was
due to (i) the economies of scale in operation of the plant;
and (ii) the decrease in cost of production as part of the
energy savings and water recycle initiatives.
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[ q el
i) Sales volume in direct sale decreased approximately by i) AR ANEBE TN TEEmIEREHE
20.1% from approximately 4,415,000 meters in 2015 to & WEEHEENHEER _T—HFH
approximately 3,529,000 meters in 2016 as the Group 4,415,000 N E#120.1% E — T —NFH
focused on processing instead of direct sale in 2016. #13,529,000K - EEHER FHEBN =
The average selling price for direct sale remained stable T RNEHEFVHOARE10.27T, K F
at approximately RMB10.2/meter in 2016 as compared BAKE - MZE—RAFHARARKE101T
to approximately RMB10.1/meter in 2015. The Group S K RNREBEEHEERRN T F
maintained gross profit margin at approximately 11.3% in MEMEREZROI.3% M _ZE—RF
2016 as compared to approximately 11.7% in 2015 for B4 511.7% °
direct sales.
Trading of PFY 3 WMmR#4HES
2016 2015
—EB-AE —ET—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR®FT
Revenue Wz 27,401 4,278
Gross profit EF 681 314
Gross profit margin (%) FEFNE (%) 2.5% 7.3%
Revenue and gross profit derived from PFY trading business in HiaRGESEBN _ZE—"FORREEENS
2016 were approximately RMB27.4 million and approximately R4 5 AR 27,400,0007T & 4 A R #700,000
RMBO.7 million, respectively and were mainly due to the (i) increase T EZHRR)KBRHABESINHEER=-Z—H
in sales volume in PFY trading from approximately 407 tonnes FHHITAMEIEMNE ZFT — RN FHL1,973
in 2015 to approximately 1,973 tonnes in 2016; and (i) increase AW RFHEERH-ZT—HAFHOARE
in average selling price from approximately RMB10,500/tonne in 10,5007,/ A EAZE T —RNENHARE
2015 to approximately RMB13,900/tonne in 2016. There was an 13,9007t/ ABEFTBL - R — T — /" M5 LM
increase in trading volume of PFY in the market during 2016 as HarHEFIBERN_E—1F -AEMSS
compared to 2015. The Group’s gross profit margin decreased BOAREBMOENKRE -_S—AENH73% L
from approximately 7.3% in 2015 to approximately 2.5% in 2016 REZT—RNFHH2.5%

according to the market trend.
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Other income and gains, net Htt AR W= F5E

Net other income and gains increased by approximately RMB5.3 million EMBARRGSFEHBE-S—AFTA=1—
from approximately RMB7.9 million for the year ended 31 December BIEFEHLHARET?,900,000TH# 1049 AR
2015 to approximately RMB13.2 million for the year ended 31 December 5,300,000t 2B EZE—"F+-A=+—HILFE
2016, primarily due to an increase in fair value gain from financial assets K %) A R #13,200,0007T - = ZHRRAFEF AR

at fair value through profit or loss. ENEREEMNRATEKEEMME-
Selling and distribution expenses HERTHMAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2016 2015

—E-XRE —ZE—h%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARBTF T

Selling and distribution expenses total THE ko HRF 2 B 5 9,346 8,544

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately RMBO.8 HEMDHERAYHREE—_T—AF+-_A=+—81t
million, or approximately 9.4% from approximately RMB8.5 million for the FEHH AR MES,500,0007T 1 H149 A K #5800,0007T
year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB9.3 million for the HHOANEHE_T—A"FT_A=T—HILFERN
year ended 31 December 2016, primarily attributable to the increase in #9 AR #9,300,0007T * £ B B B AN INFTEL -
freight costs.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLEE

2016 2015

—E-REF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT

Administrative expenses total 1T 2% 59,450 57,435

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB2.0 million, or
approximately 3.5% from approximately RMB57.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB59.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, primarily due to the (1) increase in staff
costs arising from the increase in reward of employees as a result of the
improvement in profitability of the Group for the Review Period; and (2)
increase in share-based payment expenses of approximately RMB7.8
million (2015: approximately RMB4.2 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMBO0.4 million from
approximately RMB1.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately RMB1.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
primarily due to the increase in interest expenses on bills payable issued
by the Company in 2016.

TRAXHBE-T—AF+-A=+—HLFEHN
#9 AN R ¥57,400,000 T3 hn4y A R #2,000,0007T 5k 47
SEREHBET—AREFETA=ZT—HLEFENDHA
R #59,500,0007T EZHMR)AEEREBEF AR
ARk - B B EENEINBHE TR X©Q)
A B B NEL ARY7,800,000T (ZZF—H
F 4 AR #4,200,0007T) FTEL

B & R A

MEXRARBEE-_T—RAF+_A=+—HLEE
K #) A R #1,000,0007T 38 hn 4 A R #400,0007T &
HE-_Z—F+_A=Z+t—BLFENHARKE
1,400,0007T ' EFBHR AR RIN T —NFBEITHE
MEBHN B L MATE
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Profit before tax

Profit before tax increased by approximately RMB27.9 million or
approximately 33.9% from approximately RMB82.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB110.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, which was mainly due to (1) an increase
in gross profit by approximately RMB25.8 million; and (2) an increase in
net other income and gains of approximately RMB5.3 million.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately 16.9% from 2015
to 2016, which was lower than the increase in profit before tax of
approximately 33.9%. The Group’s effective income tax rate decreased
from approximately 22.6% in 2015 to approximately 19.7% in 2016
due to the increase in the profit contributed by the Group’s High and
New Technology Enterprises subsidiaries, partially offset by the non-
deductable impact of the share-based payments.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit during the Review Period increased by approximately
RMB24.4 million, or approximately 38.1% from approximately RMB64.2
million for 2015 to approximately RMB88.6 million for the Review Period.
The Group’s net profit margin increased from approximately 13.0% for
2015 to approximately 15.3% for 2016, mainly due to the increase in
other net income over administrative expenses and decrease in effective
tax rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2016 increased by
approximately RMB8.6 million, or approximately 6.0% as compared to
the same as at 31 December 2015, mainly attributable to the additions
of property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB24.2 million
which are mainly construction-in-progress and plant and machinery for
production. The increase was partially offset by depreciation and disposal
of approximately RMB14.9 million and approximately RMBO.7 million,
respectively.
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Inventories rE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
Finished goods B 17,803 26,605
Raw materials R 28,581 14,107
Work in progress TR 2,401 1,123
48,785 41,835
Less: provision B (1,192) (1,776)
47,593 40,059
Inventory turnover days (Note) FEREAE(Hi7) 28 daysH 29 daysH

Note: Inventory turnover days equal to the average of beginning and ending Wi TFERAERSEERFEVRERFEZGHT

inventory balances of the year divided by revenue of the year and BHEGRAFRREBRABBFEENERD S
multiplied by the total number of days for the respective year. (2015: ZE-RF - HREEMMELKREINE S
Opening inventories balances of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng BERARIFEKE (BB BERERAT (BB
Foreign Trading Company and Yongsheng (HK) International Co., ¥ (HEZHE])MABHABIEBNF
Limited (“Trading Business”) amounting to RMB50.5 million 1E & & #: AR #50,500,0007T) °

was excluded as a result of the disposal of Trading Business (the

“Disposals”)).

Inventories as at 31 December 2016 increased by approximately RZE—RNF+_A=+—HHNGFER=-Z—H
RMB7.5 million, or approximately 18.8% as compared to the same as F+ZA=1+—HE ML A K¥7,500,0007T 3k 4
at 31 December 2015, mainly due to the increase in inventories of PFY 18.8% FEMNEEFANKRGRAEBHNFERM
business during the Review Period. HEANFTEL o

Inventory turnover days decreased from 29 days in 2015 to 28 days in HREEEXEFHKSIEESREK MG I WEFE

2016 as a result of the increase in revenue growth over finished goods for HAgHE_T-RFMNORRIPE_ZT—RF 5’928
production business. He
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Trade and bills receivables

BEZRURREREREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLEE

2016 2015

—E-REF —ZET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBFT

Trade receivables 5 EFTE 21,641 16,106
Bills receivable W E & 109,894 76,598
131,535 92,704

Less: Provision for impairment R ERE (1,198) (1,198)
Trade and bills receivables — net B EN N EWEE —H5E 130,337 91,506
Debtors’ turnover days (Note) FEUBRF RS A & (57) 70 daysH 48 daysH

Note: Debtors’ turnover days equal to the average of the beginning and
ending trade receivable balances of the year divided by revenue and
multiplied by the total number of days for the respective year. (2015:
Opening trade and bills receivable balances of Trading Business
amounting to approximately RMB91.8 million was excluded as a result
of the Disposals.)

Trade and bills receivable as at 31 December 2016 increased by
approximately RMB38.8 million, or approximately 42.4% as compared
1o the same as at 31 December 2015, mainly attributable to the increase
in bills receivable of approximately RMB33.3 million and the increase in
trading accounts receivables by approximately RMB5.5 million as a result
of the further expansion of the Group’s PFY production business.

Debtors’ turnover days increased from 48 days in 2015 to 70 days in
2016, mainly due to the increase in bills receivables of approximately
RMB33.3 million, or approximately 43.5% for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Trade and bills payables
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EZRNREREANRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HBLEE

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETR ARBEFT

Trade and bills payables B RENFREREMNEE 92,767 67,092
Creditors’ turnover days (Note) FERERFBE A S (M) 71 daysH 46 daysH

Note: Creditors’ turnover days equal to the average of the beginning and
ending trade and bills payables balances of the year divided by cost
of sales and multiplied by the actual number of days in respective
year. (2015: Opening trade and bills payables balances of Trading
Business amounting to RMB91.0 million was excluded as a result of
the Disposals.)

Trade and bills payables as at 31 December 2016 increased by
approximately RMB25.7 million, or approximately 38.3% as compared to
the same as at 31 December 2015 as a result of the increase in purchase
amount regarding the PFY production business in the fourth quarter.

Creditors’ turnover days increased from 46 days in 2015 to 71 days
in 2016, mainly due to the increase in trade and bills payables of
approximately RMB25.7 million more than the increase in total cost of
sales for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Capital Structure

The Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2016 is
HK$4,000,000 divided into 400,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy, and its debt to equity
ratio (calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing bank loans by
total equity) as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was 0%. The current
ratio (calculated as current assets divided by current liabilities) as at 31
December 2016 was approximately 3.06 times (31 December 2015:
approximately 3.28 times).

HeF: BEAEFAEBSESRENRTRESHES
SRIE K RS AR A T 5 BBk LA SH & A AN B IR DA
HEAEENEERAR - (ZT—RF HNHE
EEMABFAESEBNFYE S ENRIEA
I B = S AR #91,000,0007T °)

R-ZE—RE+_A=+—ANEBEZFENRAELE
NEBRR-_T—RAF+-A=+—HBENHGARE
25,700,000 8% 4738.3% * Jh AP Mfim T 4k A EE TSR
FEER A INATE -

ENERREAEE B T —AFMN46BEMEZ
;f/\EE'\J71E’Iz@cﬂﬂﬁft\%@i_’é*/\ﬂzﬂL—ﬂ
=+ —HIEFERNE S ENRIBRENSEEMAOA
R #25,700,0007T * = 74 48 85 & B AN 12 1@ P £ -

BERERE

ARABR-ZE-ARFT-_A=T—HHNEETRES
4,000,000/ 7T - 53 #$400,000,0000% &A% I 50.01 7T
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Cash flow

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated cash flow
statements for the year:

BHERE

TREJFAGHESRERME

2016 2015
—2-RF —T-0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFT
Net cash generated from/(used in) CESEENS, (FTA)
operating activities REFEE 181,841 (1,874)
Net cash (used in)/generated from "EEE (FTA) B
investing activities R FE (233,341) 3,398
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA) &
financing activities REFRE (20,741) 8,977
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBESEEY CRL) /i
cash equivalents R (72,241) 10,501
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYREMRESEEY
of the year 139,487 128,695
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on RehREFEYINEER
cash and cash equivalents Sy e 116 291
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREeMNREEEY 67,362 139,487

Cash flow from operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB181.8 million in 2016, which was primarily attributable to profit
before taxation of approximately RMB110.3 million and increased in net
changes in working capital items of approximately RMB66.4 million.

Cash flow from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities of approximately RMB233.3
million in 2016, which was mainly due to investment in financial assets
of approximately RMB170.0 million; and trust loan receivable of
approximately RMB50.0million in order to increase returns for cash.

Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to approximately

RMB20.7 million in 2016, which was mainly consisted of dividend paid to
shareholders of approximately RMB20.5 million.
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Liquidity, financial resources, and use of the IPO
proceeds

As at 31 December 2016, the total amount of the borrowings by the
Group was nil (31 December 2015: nil). The Group’s cash and bank
balances, including pledged deposits amounted to approximately
RMB69.1 million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB144.6 million).

The Group has received net proceeds of approximately HK$81.5 million
(approximately RMB63.7 million) from issuance of ordinary shares under
the share offer on 27 November 2013. The Group has utilised all of the
net proceeds as at 31 December 2016 in the manner consistent with that
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 July 2016 in
relation to the change of use in proceeds.

Pledge of the Group’s assets

Save as disclosed in the balance of pledged deposits set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position on page 88 of this annual
report, letter of credit facilities of approximately RMB35.8 million were
secured by buildings with net carrying amount of approximately RMB8.1
million and a portion of land use rights with net carrying amount of
approximately RMB4.3 million as at 31 December 2016. As at 31
December 2015, the Company has not pledged other assets.

Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments as at 31 December
2016:

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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RBES MBERRERXAHBRERS
MEAR

R_E—RNF+_A=+—B NEENEREEL
E(ZZE—RF+-A=+—8 &) - R-_T—~F
TZA=Z+T—RA AEEMNRESRRITES (REE
EIFFERR) #8 A R#E69,100,0007T (Z B —HF+ =
A=+—8:4% AR®144,600,0007T) °

AEBMERZZT—=F+— A=+ LtHESRER
03B 21T MR A FT1S FIBF 58 981,500,000 7T
(49 AR #563,700,0007T) - REER ZZF—RF+=
A=Z+—HERARARBHA-Z—X"FLtANRE
HERABRERARN AN ESE B A&
BAEEmEREFE-

SEHEEEMA

BRAFRESEHAHMBRARAKDIEIFFTK
EHFEEEN R_E—R"F+=-A=+—8"
TERE N ARMS35,800,000TE HEEFELN S
AR®8,100,000t M EF RIREFEN BARE
4,300,0007CBIEB 3 T fE R EEE B - R =F— A
F+_AZ+—H AQRRTELZHREMBEE-

BAREE

AEER-_ZE-—RFT_A=T—HETIERE

=

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EEENEFSI-F
Property, plant and equipment VI S MR 48,424 3,860
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Operating lease commitments

The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under
non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

REHERE

REBAARIEHEEHEER TR T2 HA R K RKE
HENREEMT

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARMEF T

Within one year —F R 28 411
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF(RIEEERE) 6 19
34 430

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

Material acquisition and disposals

Save as the Disposals in 2015, details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 May 2015 and the circular of
the Company dated 8 July 2015, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the Review
Period.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED HEDGE

Most transactions of the Group are settled in RMB since the operations
of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC, and the major subsidiaries
of the Group are operating in the PRC and the functional currency of the
major subsidiaries is RMB. The reporting currency of the Group is RMB.
The Group carried on trading of textile products from overseas and most
of the transactions were settled in United States Dollars. The Group’s
cash and bank deposits are predominantly in RMB. The Company
will pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. The
Directors are of the view that RMB is relatively stable against other
currencies and the Group will closely monitor the fluctuations in exchange
rates, and that hedging by means of derivative instruments is therefore
not necessary. RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency. A
portion of the Group’s RMB revenue or profit may be converted into other
currencies to meet foreign currency obligations of the Group such as the
payment of dividends, if declared.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 560 employees (31
December 2015: 572 employees). The employees of the Group were
remunerated based on their experience, qualifications, the Group’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the Review Period, staff costs (including Directors’ remunerations)
amounted to approximately RMB66.4 million (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB61.0 million). Moreover, the share option scheme
of the Company (the “Scheme”) was adopted on 7 November 2013
in order to retain staff members who have made contributions to the
success of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
options were granted (31 December 2015, 15,000,000 share options
and 16,300,000 share options were granted on 6 January 2015 and
30 December 2015, respectively, under the Scheme (collectively, the
“Grants”). Details of the Grants are further disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme of the Company” under the Report of Directors and note
27 to the financial statements.

As required by the relevant PRC regulations regarding social insurance,
during the Relevant Period, the Group participated in the social insurance
schemes operated by the relevant local government authorities which
include retirement pension, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
industrial injuries insurance and maternity insurance.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme, at no time during the Review Period was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiary of that ultimate holding company a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIVIDEND

Based on the Group’s operating performance in 2016 and taking
into consideration of its long-term future development, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.035 per share
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Together with the
interim dividend paid of HK$0.03 per share for the six months ended 30
June 2016, the total dividend per share for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 is HK$0.065 per share, representing a dividend payout
ratio of 28.7%. The Board believes that the Group’s sound financial
condition will enable the Group to provide sufficient support to its future
development, while providing the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) with a favorable return.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Note:

FEFEREERRE

Investment
amount as of Expected annual Management/ Type of
31 December rate of retumn custodian fees investment
Assets manager Custodian RMB000  Date of agreement  Effective date (per annum) perannum)  Maturity Notg)
#z
=1l
RER
BEEEA BEREA AR BHAH k3 GE] RAENEE €8/itEE 348 REER
(&%) (8%)
2016
01658
Shenzhen Sidaoke Investment Limited Ping An Bank Co,, Limited, Shenzhen Branch 20000 4Jul2016 4u12016 6.62% 102%  8months 1
('SZ Sidaoke Investment') ('Ping An Bank Shenzhen')
E}Eﬁi’iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ?? TRETRABRATRIIAT 201657548 01657748 8fEA
(FRImRENRE)) ([P=EGRI)
SZ Sidaoke Investment Ping An Bank Shenzhen 65,000 12Jul 2016 13Jul2016 6.62% 1.02%  8months 1
RIBRERRE FRBARI 2016574128 2016577138 8fEA
LJZ Wealth Management (Shanghaj Co., Limited China Merchant Bank Co., Limfted, Shanghai Branch 15000 11Jul 2016 14.ul 2016 5.50% 0.04% 7 months 2
('LJZ Wealth Management') ('CMB Shanghai')
EXBHEER (LE)ERAA RERARNERAA LEAT 016575118 016577148 @A
((EZEHEEE]) (TRBRITLE)
LJZ Wealth Management CMB Shanghai 20000 16Aug 2016 18 Aug 2016 540% 0.04%  6months 2
ERBHEER ARBALE 216587168 216587188 64
LJZ Wealth Management CMB Shanghai 30,000 208ep2016 238ep 2016 530% 004% 6 months 2
ERRAEEE REBALE 16597208 2016597238 6fA
China Foreign Economy and Trade Trust Co,, Limited Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co. Limted 20000 20Sep 2016 21 Sep 2016 6.30% - 12months 3
Bejing Changan Avenue East Branch
HEHERRSERARLA BRRERRAIRNERAT 16598208 016598217 12084
FRRRZERS
170000
—
215
0155
Shanghai International Trust Co., Limited China Construction Bank Corporation Limited, 30000 12Aug 2015 12 Aug 2015 3.00% 030%  Anytime, the amount 4
Shanghai 4h Branch was fully redeemed
in2016
LEBRERARDA HEERRARNARAR LERDRA 015587128 015587128 {EfE R CH20165
2EED
—
Type 1 investment refers to (i) monetary instruments; (i) bonds; (iii) 1TREREENEETIR: (MEF: (RFES (v)
public equity funds; (iv) fixed income products; (v) fixed income- Imqﬂl SEEMh VEBEWSRE R RV)EAER
like products; and (vi) other low-risk investment products including ST EE L BIEHRBEZS

subscription of new shares, etc.

Type 2 investment refers to (i) bank deposits; (i) money market funds;
(i) bond funds and low risk fixed income assets; and (iv) other fixed
income assets approved by the regulatory bodies.

Type 3 investment refers to (i) bank deposits; (i) money market funds;
(iii) bond funds; (iv) transferable depositary notes; (v) bond repurchases;
(Vi) corporate bonds with AA- rating or above; and (vii) short-term notes
with A-1 rating or above.

Type 4 investment refers to (i) inter-bank deposits; (i) short-term bonds
(within 3 years) with fixed interest rates; (i) bonds with floating rates
traded on the stock exchange; and (iv) repurchases of bonds within 1
year, etc.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investments held by
the Company as at 31 December 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”)

aged 54, is an executive director of the Company (the “Director”)
and the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the board of the Directors (the
“Board”). Mr. Li is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee under
the Board and one of the authorised representatives of the Company.
Mr. Li has more than twenty five years of experience in textile and
trading industry, and is mainly responsible for overall business strategy
and management of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”). From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Li had been engaged
in trading of textile products as a sole proprietorship. He worked as the
general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company from March
1993 to November 1997, and from November 1997 to June 1999, he
assumed the role of general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited (currently known as Hangzhou Yongsheng Group
Limited, “Yongsheng Group”). He served as the general manager of
Hangzhou Yongsheng Weaving Limited (“Yongsheng Weaving”) from
June 1999 to April 2003. Since 2003, Mr. Li has been appointed as a
chairman of the board of directors of Yongsheng Group. Mr. Li has been
a senior economist since October 2013.

Mr. Li completed his professional study majoring in dyeing and
processing engineering in Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile (now known as
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University) in July 1985. In March 2004, he completed
a course on corporate director advanced business administration
which was held by Ningbo Jianfeng Management Technology Research
Centre. Between 2006 and 2012, Mr. Li had also completed various
courses including the Senior Training Course on the Philosophy of New
Technology and Enterprise Growth —Growth enterprise and the Senior
Training Course on Financial Investment in Real Operations respectively
offered by the school of humanities and the school of media of Zhejiang
University, the Senior Training course for Business Administration
Executives offered by Zhejiang Gongshang University, the training course
for senior enterprise operators and managers in Hangzhou City on “356
Engineering Programme” in relation to investment, financing and capital
operation training offered by Fudan University. Mr. Li was appointed as
the deputy chairman of The Professional Committee of Zhejiang Province
Privately-operated Economic Research Centre in December 2002. Mr. Li
is has completed the CEO Finance Program for China Enterprise in 2016,
which was held by the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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Mr. Li has been elected as a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC from December 2016.
Mr. Li has been elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since May 2005. He was also elected as the chairman of the
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District WWenzhou Chamber of Commerce in July
2010, the vice-chairman of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District General
Chamber of Commerce in December 2012, the standing council member
and vice-chairman of the China Chemical Fiber Association in April 2012
and April 2015 respectively. In October 2008, Mr. Li was named the “Staff
Caring Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Hangzhou City jointly awarded by
the Federation of Trade Union of Hangzhou City and the Industry and
Commerce Joint Committee of Hangzhou City. In February 2013, Mr. Li
was awarded the “Outstanding Socialist Builder” for the years 2010—
2012 by the Office of China Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District and The
People’s Government Office of Hangzhou City Xianshan District.

Mr. Zhao Jidong (“Mr. Zhao”)

aged 52, is an executive Director and chief executive officer (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) of the Company. Mr. Zhao is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee under the Board. Mr. Zhao has more
than twenty five years of experience in textile industry, and is mainly
responsible for general management and overall operations of the Group.
Mr. Zhao has joined Yongsheng Group as the chief executive officer
since June 2010. Mr. Zhao was previously a director of Yongsheng
Group. From July 1985 to October 2006, Mr. Zhao had worked in
Yangzhou Cloth Factory and he served previously as the factory director.
He had also served as the deputy director and director of Yangzhou
Textile Research Institute from February 1990 to October 2006. From
September 2006 to July 2011, Mr. Zhao had been the director of
Shanghai Huayuan Company Limited, a company which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600094). From November 2006
to July 2011, Mr. Zhao had been the deputy general manager and chief
engineer of Shanghai Huayuan Company Limited.
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Mr. Zhao obtained his bachelor degree majoring in textile engineering
from Wuxi Light Industry Institute (currently known as Jiangnan University)
in July 1985. Mr. Zhao has also completed the Senior Training Course for
Young Entrepreneur in Financial Control and Capital Operation offered by
Tsinghua University in December 2011. Mr. Zhao was elected as a council
member of Yangzhou City Textile Construction Association in June 1991.
He joined the Jiangsu Textile Engineering Association as a product
professional committee member in January 2004, and has granted the
government special allowance certificate by the State Council of the
PRC in 2000. He completed and passed the Training Course for Senior
Management of Listed Companies offered by China Securities Regulatory
Commission Shanghai Regulatory Bureau respectively in 2007 and 2008.
He was also accredited as a senior engineer on textile engineering by
the Job Title Reform Office of Jiangsu Province Textile Industry Bureau
and professor level senior engineer by Jiangsu Department of Personnel
respectively in 1995 and 2000. Mr. Zhao was engaged by the Graduate
School of Donghua University as an off-campus mentor in September
2012.

Mr. Zhao has been elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since December 2016. Mr. Zhao also obtained a number of
awards, including the “3rd prize of Yangzhou Science and Technology
Advancement Awards” and the “1st prize of Yangzhou Science and
Technology Advancement Awards” awarded by Yangzhou Science and
Technology Advancement Awards Judging Committee, the “National
Textile Labour Working Role Model” awarded by China Textile Industrial
Bureau, the “Yangzhou City Technology Contributor” awarded by
Yangzhou City, the “Central Enterprise Labour Working Role Model”
awarded jointly by the National Ministry of Personnel and State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council,
and the “2nd Prize of Sang Ma Textile Technology” by the Sang Ma
Trust Fund. Mr. Zhao was awarded the “3rd prize of Jiangsu Province
Science and Technology Advancement Awards” on his projects of “High
Stimulation Twisted Peach Skin flannel” and “The Ultrafine Composite
Fabric Thread”, and was awarded the “2nd prize of Jiangsu Province
Science and Technology Advancement Awards” on his project of
“The Sea-island Ultrafine Composite Synthetic Chamois Leathers” by
the Jiangsu Province Science and Technology Advancement Awards
Judging Committee. He has been selected as one of the “Candidates of
the First Batch National Engineering Talents of the National New Century
Project” by the Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) in April 2004 and passed its advanced training in July 2005.
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Mr. Li Conghua (“Mr. Li CH”)

aged 42, is an executive Director and the general manager of Hangzhou
Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign Trading Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Yongsheng Trading”). Mr. Li CH has more than 15 years of experience
in the textile industry, and was mainly responsible for management and
supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s trading business before
the disposal of the trading business of textile-related products by the
Group in May 2015. Mr. Li CH is currently responsible for conducting
product market trend analysis. He worked as a chemical fiber materials
salesperson in the chemical fiber department in Xiaoshan Yongsheng
Trading Company Limited from June 1997 to December 2000, and
worked as a department manager in chemical fiber department of
Yongsheng Group from January 2000 to December 2004. Since March
2005, he has been the general manager of Hangzhou Yongsheng
Trading. Mr. Li CH has also completed the Senior Training Course
for Chief Executive Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by Zhejiang
University in January 2008. Mr. Li CH is the nephew of Mr. Li Cheng.

Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”)

aged 42, is an executive Director and the general manager of the
manufacturing division of Yongsheng Dyeing. Mr. Ma has more
than twenty years of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of ordinary operation of
the Group’s dyeing business. Mr. Ma was the technical supervisor and
workshop officer of Zhejiang Hongli Group Limited Printing and Dyeing
Branch Company from August 1994 to February 2001. Mr. Ma held the
position of domestic trading manager of Yongsheng Group from January
2002 to July 2005 and was previously a director of Yongsheng Group.
Mr. Ma served as the vice factory director, factory director and deputy
general manager of Yongsheng Dyeing from August 2005 to February
2008, and has held the general manager position of Yongsheng Dyeing
since February 2008.

In July 1994, Mr. Ma completed his professional study major in dyeing
and processing in Zhejiang Province Common Intermediate Professional
School. He completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by the school of humanity of Zhejiang
University in April 2007. Mr. Ma was awarded the “Progressive Individual
of Xiaoshan Dongpian Printing, Dyeing and Chemical Industry Provincial
Level Environmental Protection Key Regulatory Area Remediation
Work” by the People’s Government of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou
City in October 2007. Mr. Ma obtained the award of “Outstanding
Contract Manager of Xiaoshan District” jointly offered by the Hangzhou
Administration for Industry and Commerce Xiaoshan Branch and
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Enterprise Contract Management
Association in 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (“Ms. Wong”)

aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director. She is also the
chairlady of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
under the Board. Ms. Wong has more than twenty five years of
experience in accounting and auditing, and mainly provides her
independent judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code of
conduct and other aspects of the Company. She had worked in major
international accounting firms and local accounting firms before she set
up her own accounting firm in Hong Kong in 1993.

Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director and the chairperson
of the audit committees of AVIC International Holdings Limited (Main
Board stock code: 161), China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings
Limited (Main Board stock code: 527) and Overseas Chinese Town (Asia)
Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 3366). Ms. Wong is a non-
executive director of Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Limited
(Main Board stock code: 6893). Ms. Wong was an executive director
of Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously known as
JC Group Holdings Limited) (Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) stock
code: 8326) and an independent non-executive director of Glory Flame
Holdings Limited (GEM stock code: 8059), and resigned on 18 October
2016 and 22 March 2016 respectively.

Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Hong
Kong in November 19883 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and
finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has been
registered as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since June
1991. Ms. Wong has become a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (‘FCCA”) and a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘FCPA”) since May 1995
and February 2001 respectively. Ms. Wong has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 7 November 2013.

Mr. Shiping James Wang (“Mr. Wang”)

aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee under the
Board. Mr. Wang mainly provides his independent judgment on strategy,
performance, resources, code of conduct and other aspects of the
Company. Mr. Wang was the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Zhongxin
Law Firm Shanghai Branch from July 2009 to March 2013 and has been
the Foreign General Legal Counsel of Shanghai Hanyuan Law Firm since
June 2013.

Directors and Senior Management
EENREREEE

BYFHTES
BEER LT ([Ext])

555% BMUIHNITEF  TREFSETERLZES
ITREEFHNEEGEE -BEX LR G REFTE
BEBBBFER TERARAKRR KRB BR
RITREAEEREHRBHE -BRR—NAN=F
REBKZGHEEBHTAT BREEER A
B P R A & A A B TS AR

Bz tTHARMBBRERIRG AR QA (ERERG
K57 161) - REImEAFERIZRAR AR (ERBK
MRESE:527) REGBW (M) ZERERDF (ER
BN - 3366) B IFNTEERERZERE
BB TATESE (BHR)ERERIF (R
RAMREE:6893) MIFMITEST - BER TR RERR
eeR&EZERAR AR (FIFJIC Group Holdings
Limited ) (BIZERARMH AR5 - 8326) MEATTE F KA
BAEIR AR 2~ & (BIZER G K5 - 8059) BB IF
BITEE UHRER_ZT—R"ETATNBRZ
T-RNEZA-+t=-BHE-

BEXIN-NAN=ZF+-ARBREEARBXELE
i YR —NAN\AFEARRBERBIABRBABUGE
BEERRBEF AU BRER - RE—NAN—F
NAREMATERESTM AH5E - A
FRAR-ZZ-—F - ARRRRERFARES
MAEERASERBEGMAGERER BEX
TEZE-=F+ - AtHREZERBILIENTT
E=-

FHPEE(TELRE]

565 WU FATEE TREFEHTEKEZER
SRR ZEEXB - TALETERADARE KR
BBRMTR/ERNSERE B L HE - TEER
TERNFEAR T -=F=-AREIREREME
BRLEBSMBENEZBAER YA T —=FX
AR L8 T REDE B SNEAR R o

KB HERAT 20165F

41



Directors and Senior Management
EERSREERE

Mr. Wang obtained a master degree of science in biochemical
engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in May 1988.
He completed his Juris Doctoris in Seton Hall Law School in June 1994.
Mr. Wang was admitted as an attorney at law in the Supreme Court of
New Jersey and the US District Court for the District of New Jersey in
December 1994. Mr. Wang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 7 November 2013.

Dr. Wang Huaping (“Dr. Wang”)

aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee under the Board. Dr. Wang mainly provides his
independent judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code of
conduct and other aspects of the Company.

Dr. Wang has been serving as a professor and a doctoral advisor in the
Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University since
October 2002, and has been the associate dean of the Research Institute
of Donghua University since 2011. Dr. Wang is renowned for his research
in nanomaterials for fiber forming and polymer-based nanocomposite
fibers, spinning forming theory and processing technology, systems
of new clean production: ionic liquid/fiber-forming polymer and has
published a number of papers on those topics.

Dr. Wang is an independent director of Jiangsu Jiangnan High Polymer
Fiber Co. Ltd, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600527) and Zhejiang Unifull Industrial Fiber Co.,
Ltd, a company which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 002427).

Dr. Wang obtained a doctorate degree from the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Donghua University in March 2002. From
January 1989 to March 1992, Dr. Wang was employed by the China
Textile University (currently known as Donghua University) as a trainee
researcher and then worked at Donghua University as an officer of
the Technology Laboratory of Chemical Fiber Engineering Research
Centre. Dr. Wang served as an assistant researcher, a deputy officer, an
officer, and an associate researcher in the Faculty of Materials Science
and Engineering from March 1992 to September 2002. Dr. Wang was
appointed as the associate dean of the Faculty of Materials Science and
Engineering from November 2004 to April 2010. Since September 2008,
Dr. Wang has been a director of the Institute for Engineering Research
Center of Advanced Glass Manufacturing Technology.
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Dr. Wang is the deputy director of the Gaoxin Fibers Professional
Committee of China Chemical Fibers Association, the deputy director
of Fibers Professional Committee of China Textile Engineering Society,
deputy director of Fibers Professional Committee of Shanghai Textile
Engineering Society, the deputy director of Industrial Standard Committee
of China Chemical Fibers Association, a committee member of Expertise
Committee of China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association, the
expert of the Textile Industry Division of the National Development and
Reform Commission, a committee member of Technical Committee of
the Engineering Research Centre of the Textile Equipment of the Ministry
of Education and the deputy director of the Editorial Committee of China
Synthetic Fiber Industry. Dr. Wang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 August 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Shi Hongxing (“Mr. Shi”)

aged 48, is the general manager of Nantong Yongsheng, and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of day-to-day operation of
fiber manufacturing business of Nantong Yongsheng. Mr. Shi joined the
Group in June 2010. Mr. Shi had been the general manager assistant and
the head of production department of Nantong Huatong Chemical Fiber
Limited from July 1993 to June 2008. He had been the general manager
assistant in Shenghong Group Jiangsu Zhonglu Technology Company
Limited from August 2008 to May 2010.

Mr. Shi obtained his bachelor degree majoring in chemical fiber from the
Suzhou Silk Technical Institute in July 1993. Mr. Shi has been accredited
as a senior engineer since December 2008.

Mr. Ye Hongfu (“Mr. Ye”)

aged 39, is the general manager of Yongsheng Chemical Fiber, and
is mainly responsible for management and supervision of day-to-day
operation of fiber manufacturing business of Yongsheng Fiber. Mr.
Ye joined the Group in May 2006. Mr. Ye had been the head of sales
department of Yongsheng Fiber from May 2007 to August 2011. He had
been the vice general manager and executive vice general manager in
Yongsheng Fiber from August 2011 to March 2016. Mr. Ye had been the
supervisor of polyester filament production and after-sales specialist of
Far Eastern Industries (Shanghai) Limited from July 2000 to December
2008. He had been the business representative of Huvis Corporation
Shanghai Representative Office from December 2003 to May 2006.

Mr. Ye obtained his bachelor degree majoring in materials science from
the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University in
July 2000.
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Mr. Leung Ho Yan, Julian (“Mr. Leung”)

aged 37, is the chief financial officer, company secretary and one of
the authorised representatives of the Company. Mr. Leung has more
than fifteen years of experience in audit, accounting and corporate
compliance, and is mainly responsible for compliance, financial reporting
and planning of the Group. Mr. Leung joined Yongsheng (HK) International
Co., Limited in February 2012 and was appointed as company secretory
of the Company since 7 November 2013. He worked in KPMG from
August 2001 to January 2012.

Mr. Leung obtained the Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy and the Master
of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 2001 and October 2014 respectively. Mr. Leung has been the
fellow members of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(“FCCA”), the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“FCPA”), Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (‘FCIS”)
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“FCS”). Mr.
Leung has been also responsible for various sub-committees for The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong since
October 2016.

Ms. Zhang Yingli (“Ms. Zhang”)

aged 43, is the head of finance department of the Group, and is
mainly responsible for financial reporting and treasury management
for subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Zhang has more than twenty years
of experience in accounting and financial reporting. Ms. Zhang joined
Yongsheng Group in October 2003. She was the financial accountant of
Zhejiang Asia Pacific Electrical and Mechanical Group Limited from July
1995 to November 2001.

Ms. Zhang completed her bachelor degree in finance in Zhengzhou
University in August 2015 and higher education in accounting in the
Central China Agricultural University in July 1995. Ms. Zhang has
obtained the certificate of passing all the required subjects of the
National Uniform CPA Examinations of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA”) in December 2015. Ms. Zhang has been
conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC as an intermediate
accountant since May 2002.
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Mr. Xu Bing

aged 36, is the head of human resources and administration department
of the Group. Mr. Xu Bing has more than fourteen years of experience
in human resources and administration management, and is mainly
responsible for human resources management and administration of
the Group. Mr. Xu Bing joined Yongsheng Weaving in May 2003 as the
office manager and then the office manager of Yongsheng Dyeing, and is
mainly responsible for human resources, administration and purchasing
management. He rotated to Yongsheng Group as the head of human
resources and administration department in December 2008. Mr. Xu Bing
worked as the manager of the human resources department of Zhejiang
Chenhui Lighting Company Limited from July 2002 to May 2003.

Mr. Xu Bing graduated in Hubei Xiangfan Institute (currently known as
Hubei University of Arts and Science) majoring in business administration
in June 2002. He further obtained a master degree of business
administration from Zhejiang University of Technology in January 2016.

Mr. Xu Hua

aged 51, is the supervisor of product information department of the
Group. Mr. Xu Hua has more than twenty years of experience of fabric
product development, and is mainly responsible for product research and
development and market research. Mr. Xu Hua joined Yongsheng Group
in March 2011. Mr. Xu Hua had been the head of product development
department of Yangzhou Cloth Factory from December 1993 to June
1997 and had been the head of product development department
and general engineer of Yangzhou Huayuan Company Limited from
November 2004 to February 2011.

Mr. Xu Hua graduated from Nantong Textile Institute in July 1987
majoring in textile engineering. He was awarded the 3rd prize, the 3rd
prize and the 2nd prize of “Jiangsu Province Science and Technology
Advancement Awards” on his projects of “High Stimulation Twisted
Peach Skin Flannel”, “The Ultrafine Composite Fabric Thread” and
“The Sea-island Ultrafine Composit Synthetic Chamoic Leather”
respectively. Mr. Xu Hua was appraised by the People’s Government of
Jiangsu Province for the achievement made from his work in relation to
technological transformation in production between 1991 and 1996. He
was named as the “Young Professional with outstanding contribution”
by the People’s Government of Yangzhou and awarded the “Five-One
Labour Medal by Yangzhou Federation of Trade Unions” in 2006. Mr.
Xu Hua was named as the head of young professionals in respect of
scientific technology of “333 Training Programme for Talented Individuals”
by Leading Group for Talented Individuals in Jiangsu Province between
2007 and 2010. Mr. Xu Hua was accredited as a senior engineer in 2002.
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The Company was committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold transparency, accountability and independence in all aspects
of business and endeavours to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the
Review Period, the Board considered that the Company had complied
with the Code.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s current corporate
practices and procedures and will maintain and further enhance the
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company, in order to
ensure it is in line with international and local best practices and maximize
the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
investors, employees, business partners and the community as a whole.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code and such code of conduct during the Review Period.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Group’s business. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors so
that independent judgement can be effectively exercised.

During the Review Period and as at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jidong (CEO)
Mr. Li Conghhua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Shiping James Wang
Dr. Wang Huaping

The brief biographical details of and relationships among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and senior
management” on pages 37 to 43. Save as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and senior management” of this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the
CEO.

During the Review Period, the Board maintained a high level of
independence, with more than one-third of the Board comprised of
independent non-executive Directors, who had exercised independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications whenever the names of the
Directors are disclosed.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the confirmations received, the Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors satisfied the requirement of
independence under the Listing Rules.
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Board Meetings and General Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly. In addition to regular meetings,
meetings are held as and when necessary under particular
circumstances. During the Review Period, ten Board meetings were
held. The Directors attended the meetings in person or by telephone in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”).

A record of the Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and the
general meetings held during the Review Period is set out as follows:

ExggERBRRAE

E=eEHAASR ARARIIEN TREFE
MEEBEATEREE REBREN EETTRE
BEHF -REBEARFAZAMERRAN (ABER
MR EETHANBBEFLMERE-

EEHFEREBEFARTHNESS SR ERKRSE
HYRDERE S0 T -

Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board
meetings held

HERE HERE
FETEEY FITRRARE
BEXRE RE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Cheng LA 10/10 2/2
Mr. Zhao Jidong ik A e 10/10 2/2
Mr. Li Conghhua FHAZES A 10/10 2/2
Mr. Ma Qinghai SHEELE 10/10 2/2

Independent non-executive Directors BYEBITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling HFEBLL 10/10 2/2
Mr. Shiping James Wang FittFE 10/10 1/2
(Note 1) (fi7#1)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 10/10 2/2

Note 1: Mr. Shiping James Wang was unable to attend an extraordinary
general meeting held in 2016 due to his other committed business
arrangements.

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) and an extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) of the Company were held on 23 May 2016 and 3
March 2016, respectively. Our forthcoming AGM will be held on 25 May
2017. Our Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and
other senior executives of the Company will attend the AGM together with
our external auditors to answer any questions from the Shareholders.
All Directors treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the
Shareholders at the AGM held annually.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses
on formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the annual
development plan and budget, monitoring financial and operating
performance, reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system,
supervising and managing management’s performance and determining
the corporate governance policy of the Group. The Board delegates the
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
to management. The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board
periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the Group.
The Board gives clear directions to management as to the matters that
must be approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of
the Group.

During the Review Period, the Board had reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee under
the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) on 7 November
2018. The Nomination Committee has from time to time identified
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board. The main consideration in selecting
candidates for directorships is whether their characters, qualifications and
experience are appropriate for the businesses of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice.
All independent non-executive Directors are subject to rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. All such retiring Directors, being eligible, may
offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Shiping
James Wang and Dr. Wang Huaping will retire from office as Directors,
being eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.
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Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has arranged liability insurance for the Directors and
officers of the Group in respect of legal action against them which is in
compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the Code.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations
and Board’s policies. The Company is committed to arranging and
funding suitable training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to participating
in any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Review Period is set out below:

EERERABNRE

ARBEETTRNTRIRXEABG it E
ERAEESRAEBNERFLRBEZRERA
BEERR-

ABERRSEEXRRE

HMETEEREZESIRSEZEN UEEAZR
SEXBEEREFTRR -ARAB I REEE
FNREEXRERABRSLHLEEE WE -
EEETHEBMNREFEFTER UEREED
MABER LR @ E A REERENRAE
BMEARKBETHRE - 2REFTHAFEEE
BRMERMN  UAGS2ETMRENEI - LERE
REFREN BRI G - REFIRMMRH EF
REBEFAMEXNBIREHIIDT

Types of continuous
professional development

programmes
BESERRRAEER

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Cheng FHMEAE 1,2,3

Mr. Zhao Jidong FHER S E 1,2,3

Mr. Li Conghua FELLE 1,2,3

Mr. Ma Qinghai BHELE 1,2,3

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHTES

Ms. Wong Wai Ling q2ERZ LT 1,3

Mr. Shiping James Wang F A 1,8

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 1,3

Notes: Hiet -

1. Attend update program organized by lawyers of the Company. 1. HEBRARRZMBBSNEFERRRE

2 Attend internal training organized by the company secretary of the 2. HEBRARRNRRMEHLEN NI -

Company.
3 Read relevant materials of workshops/internal trainings/updates on the 3. MEM S Rkl A iR R EhE

Listing Rules and other applicable regulations.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Li Cheng and the CEO is
Mr. Zhao Jidong. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
leadership to, and overseeing, the functioning of the Board and seeking
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and that they receive, in a timely manner, adequate and reliable
information. The CEO is responsible for managing the business of the
Group and leading the management team to implement strategies and
objectives adopted by the Board. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly established and set out in writing.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the remuneration committee under the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) which comprises one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors. The
roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include consulting
the Chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals for
other executive Directors, making recommendation to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms of reference
that are posted on the website of each of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Review Period, among others, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and the terms of the
executive Directors’ service contracts, made recommendation to
the Board on the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors and the CEO, assessed
performance of non-executive Directors, independent non-executive
Directors and the CEO and approved the terms of independent non-
executive Directors’ service contracts.
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There are two meetings held during the Review Period and the REBEFEA RITTMRAEH BULZEENENH
attendance by each committee member is set out below: FIERETIAT -
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Remuneration Committee FMEEERE HEXEEERE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BERZL (£E) 2/2
Mr. Zhao Jidong AR EE 2/2
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Company established the nomination committee under the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) which comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors. The roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is established with
specific terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties and is available on the website of each of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee had reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee had also reviewed the Board’s diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”).

As part of the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against selection criteria. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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One meeting was held during the Review Period and the attendance by
each committee member is set out below:
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REEFR |77 -R8#% BUZBEEKENH
FRERAEINMT

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Nomination Committee REZEBRE HEXEEERE

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) WAL (FE) 1/1

Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEE 1/1

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 11
Audit Committee EREES

The audit committee under the Board (the “Audit Committee”) currently
consists of 3 independent non-executive Directors. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s financial information,
review and supervise the Company'’s financial reporting process and
internal control procedures, nominate and monitor external auditors
and provide advice and comments to the Board. The Audit Committee
is established with specific terms of references which deal clearly with
the committee’s authority and duties and is available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the Review Period, the
Audit Committee discussed and reviewed the interim and final results
of the Group and certain other businesses. The effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control was also discussed at the meetings. The
Audit Committee had also reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls, risk management and financial reporting matters including a
review of the interim report, annual report and the final result of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The Group’s final results
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 had been reviewed by
the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed
that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules. In the opinion of
the Audit Committee, there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
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There were three meetings held during the Review Period and the REBEEA RITT=Re#H BUZESNENH
attendance by each committee member is set out below: FIERETIAT :
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Audit Committee ERZEEBRE HERE, ERXH
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairiadly) B5ERZT (£E) 3/3
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEEE 2/3
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFIEL 3/3

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a
proper and effective systems of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. On
30 December 2015, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee have
amended to include risk management as part of the internal control of
the Company. During the Review Period, the Board reported the risks
associated with the company and the Audit Committee was satisfied that
the risks have been properly deal with by the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and
internal control covering all controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board is satisfied that the Group had fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the Review
Period.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
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EREEEFH

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the REBEFAN AEESREEBNHFMZFENTT

Review Period falls within the following band: | &6 [ :
Number of individuals
AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #& 21,000,000/ 7T 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7t £2,000,0007% 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/%8 7T 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,000/%& 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001% 7T £3,500,0007% 7T =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T 24,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T £5,000,000/%8 7T 1
13

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 15 November
2013 (the “Prospectus”), Mr. Li Cheng and Ever Thrive Global Limited
are the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). To protect the Group from any potential competition,
the Controlling Shareholders had given an irrevocable non-competition
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the
Company on 7 November 2013. Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Controlling Shareholders has, among other
matters, undertaken with the Company that each of the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (other than the Group) shall
not, engage in any business which will or may compete with the business
currently and from time to time engaged by the Group. Details of the
Non-competition Undertaking have been set out in paragraph headed
“Relationship with our controlling shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance
with the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Review
Period. The independent non-executive Directors, having reviewed the
annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, are satisfied that
the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms of the Non-
competition Undertaking during the Review Period.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group’s external auditors is Ernst & Young. The remuneration
paid or payable to the external auditors of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 comprised fees for audit services of
RMB950,000 (2015: RMB1,050,000). During the financial year ended 31
December 2016, there was no non-audit service provided by the Group’s
external auditors.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

All Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the
auditor’s report on the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2016. The statement by the auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in
the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements on a going-concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian (FCCA, FCPA, FCIS, FCS) has been the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 7
November 2013. Mr. Leung is a full time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
among Board members, the Shareholders and management of the
Company. Mr. Leung has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography
of the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed “Directors and
senior management” on page 44 of this annual report.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders, at the date of deposit of the requisition, holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Convening an Extraordinary Meeting by Shareholders”.
Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person (other
than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least seven days. The procedures
for the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is
posted on the website of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

Information of the Group is delivered to the Shareholders through
a number of channels, which include annual report, interim
report, announcements and circulars at the corporate website
(http://www.chinaysgroup.com). The latest information of the Group
together with the published documents are also available on the
Company’s website. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing through the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Room 1616, 16/F, Tower Il

Lippo Centre No 89 Queensway, Admiralty,

Hong Kong

Website: www.chinaysgroup.com

Tel No.: (852) 2776 5228

Fax No.: (852) 2994 9699

The Company will handle both telephone and written enquiries from the
Shareholders from time to time. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
will be forwarded to the Board and/or relevant committees of the Board,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Constitutional Documents

During the Review Period, the Company did not make any changes to the
memorandum of association and Articles of Association of the Company,
the current version of which is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Number of shares
The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December

2016 was 400,000,000. The Company will periodically announce the
total number of its issued shares in its monthly returns.
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Important schedule for the Shareholders - AGM

An AGM will be held at Admiralty Conference Centre, 1804B, 18/F, Tower
1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong on 25 May
2017. A circular containing, among others, details of the AGM had been
despatched to the Shareholders together with this annual report.

Information for Hong Kong branch registrar

Tricor Investor Services Centre
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel No: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No: (852) 2810 8185
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website: www.tricoris.com
Office Hours: 9:00 am — 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday, except public holidays)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of complying
and applying with the Code but also about promoting and developing
a healthy and ethical corporate culture. The Company will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve the current practices on the basis
of the experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from the Shareholders to improve and promote the
transparency are welcomed.

On behalf of the Board

Li Cheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised)
of the Cayman Islands on 19 April 2012. The registered office of the
Company is at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
in Hong Kong is at Office 1616, 16th Floor, Tower Two Lippo Centre,
No. 89 Queensway, Hong Kong. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding and those of its subsidiaries which principally affected
the results, assets or liabilities of the Group are principally engaged in the
development and manufacturing of polyester filament yarns, provision
of dyeing services of differentiated polyester filament fabric, trading of
polyester filament yarns and production of 3D printing materials in the
PRC. Save as the discontinued operation of our textile-related trading
business (excluding polyester filament yarn and fabrics) starting from
August 2015 due to the disposal of the trading business (“‘Disposals”),
there were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Further discussion and analysis of the business activities of the Group,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the business of
the Group, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Business Review” as set out on pages 7 to 19 of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this directors’ report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company and each member of the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group and the financial conditions of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 86 to 186 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimize the Group’s environmental impact by
water-recycling initiatives, sewage treatment implementation, energy
saving and wastage reduction, and encouraging recycle of office supplies
and other materials. The Group also requires its factories to operate in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the relevant
PRC regulators.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group. The
Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship with its
employees and business partners and improving the quality of services to
the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
its workers are provided with regular training courses on operation of
different types of machinery, as well as work safety. The Group strives
to motivate its employees with a clear career path and opportunities for
advancement and improvement of their skills.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical
meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of
the Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group's establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.
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REORGANIZATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS
FROM SHARE OFFER

Pursuant to the reorganization to rationalize the structure of the Group in
preparation for the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company became the holding company of the companies
currently comprising the Group on 28 December 2012,

As part of the preparation for the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, the Company implemented a capitalization issue
of 297,327,010 Shares and an issue of 100,000,000 new Shares under
the share offer (the “Share Offer”) in November 2013. The net proceeds
of the Share Offer received by the Company were approximately
HK$81,500,000. During the year ended 31 December 2016, these
proceeds have been fully applied in accordance with the proposed
application set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds from the Share Offer” in the Prospectus, the announcement of
the Company dated 26 November 2013 regarding the Share Offer and
the announcement of the Company dated 8 July 2015 in relation to the
change in use of proceeds.

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 27
November 2013 (the “Listing Date”).

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the financial year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
page 90 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB210,762,000 (2015: approximately
RMB215,811,000) available for distribution to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option scheme are set
out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial statements and the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme of the Company” below, respectively.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend (the
“Final Dividend”) of HK$0.035 per Share for the financial year ended
31 December 2016. This, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.03
per Share that was paid in 2016, amounts to an aggregate dividend
payment of HK$0.065 per Share for the full financial year of 2016. The
Final Dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 5 June 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate
sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 15.5% of the Group’s total sales and the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 4.1% of the
Group's total sales. During the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 46.5% of the Group’s total purchases and
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 15.0% of the Group’s total purchases.

So far as is known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in the
section headed “Connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions” below, none of the Directors, their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or substantial shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of RMB426,000 during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB840,000).

BANK BORROWINGS

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and up
to the date of this annual report were:

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Jidong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Conghua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Shiping James Wang

Dr. Wang Huaping

Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Shiping James Wang and Dr. Wang Huaping will retire
as Directors at the forthcoming AGM. Being eligible, they offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM. None of the retiring Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
Details of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
are set out in the circular of the Company which had been despatched to
the Shareholders together with this annual report.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 7 November
2016 (except for Dr. Wang Huaping, whose service contract commenced
on 19 August 2014) subject to termination, among others, by giving
not less than three month’s notice in writing. Each of such Directors will
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM every three
years. Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Shiping James Wang and Dr. Wang Huaping
are entitled to an annual director’s fee of HK$100,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB90,000) respectively, as proposed by the Board and
approved by the Shareholders. Director’s fees are payable on a pro-rata
basis for any non-full year’s service. The remuneration of the Directors are
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience,
and to prevailing market conditions. No Directors have waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Review Period or at any time during the Review Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Review Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders of the Company during the Review Period.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 was the Company, its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary of that
ultimate holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the Review Period and up to and including the date of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and based on the confirmations received, considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 20186, interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) held
by the Directors and chief executive of the Company which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have
been entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules are as follows:
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(A) Long position in the Shares and underlying
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(A) RBROREERGHNERE

Shares
Number of
Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/  percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
i
EERZROR BA R
BEEHE Bty HE HEERAEE Bok
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”) (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 206,471,700 51.62%
FHLE ([ZRE]) (H7F1) REAE R
Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 7,075,677 1.77%
SE/EE(IRRE]) (KiF2) EREAA
Mr. Zhao Jidong (“Mr. Zhao”) (Note 3) Beneficial owner 7,000,000 1.75%
THAER S ([BEE]) (Hi3) EnlAA
Interest of spouse 4,116,427 1.03%
fo B2 s

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Mr. Li beneficially owned approximately 91.42% of the issued
share capital of Ever Thrive Global Limited which in turn,
beneficially had 206,471,700 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Li was
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares held by
Ever Thrive Global Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Li
was also the sole director of Ever Thrive Global Limited.

On 6 January 2015, share options to subscribe for
2,200,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Ma. On 30 December
2015, share options to subscribe for 2,200,000 Shares
were granted to Mr. Ma. Besides, Mr. Ma beneficially owns
2,675,677 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Ma was interested in
7,075,677 Shares in aggregate.

On 6 January 2015, share options to subscribe for
3,500,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Zhao. On 30
December 2015, share options to subscribe for 3,500,000
Shares were granted to Mr. Zhao. Besides, Ms. Chen Xi, the
spouse of Mr. Zhao, beneficially owns 4,116,427 Shares.
Therefore, Mr. Zhao is deemed, or taken to be, interested
in the said 4,116,427 Shares for the purpose of the SFO.
Accordingly, Mr. Zhao was interested in 11,116,427 Shares
in aggregate.
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EEERE
(B) Long position in shares of associated (B) REEEZERMDMNIEFR
corporation
Number of
Name of Associated Shares held/  Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
i EEER R
EEng HEEEEE 51 HE B EE Bt
Mr. Li Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 426 91.42%
e HEIRFBRAA EmEAA
Apart from those disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2016, BRAXERBEEIN RZE—XR"F+ZA
none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had =t+—B BEFHARANRSITHRABLE
any interests or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying RAR B SEEMABEEE (E&EREFHKE
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated BEIRODAIRD  HBEAROKEEETFEBR
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) that is required to be BEESH KR EEIENFEI5218 B0 A ZIEFTITE
recorded and kept in the register in accordance with section 352 ERMANERERDSORE SRR ESTA
of the SFO or any interests required to be notified to the Company AR E AR Q) N R PR ] i A o

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

68 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2016



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group:
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Number of Approximate

Shares held/  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature interested shareholding

iy EEER BEA B R

BEERE B g1 HE RO E Bok

Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 206,471,700 51.62%
EERKAR AR EmBEAA

Ms. Chen Fangqin (Note) Interest of spouse 206,471,700 51.62%

BRI At (i) [EOE s

Note: Ms. Chen Fangqin is the spouse of Mr. Li. Therefore, Ms. Chen
Fanggin was deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares in
which Mr. Li had interest for the purposes of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
SUBSIDIARIES

Huvis Corporation held 30% of the equity interest in Hangzhou Huvis
Yongsheng Chemical Fiber Limited as at 31 December 2016. For details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Yongsheng Chemical Fiber” set
out in the section headed “History and development” of the Prospectus.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7
November 2013 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants under the
Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe the Shares to any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 7 November 2013,
subject to early termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (j) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an
option is offered to a participant; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date on which an option
is offered to a participant; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
on which an option is offered to a participant.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the Listing
Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue unless
approved by the Shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.
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As at 31 December 2016, the total number of outstanding options
available for issue under the Scheme was 40,000,000 Shares, which
represented 10.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2016 (is the same as at the date and of this annual report). As
at 31 December 2016, the total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued under the outstanding options granted under the Scheme
was 26,618,000 Shares, which represented 6.65% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, no share options
were granted (31 December 2015, 15,000,000 share options and
16,300,000 share options were granted on 6 January 2015 and
30 December 2015, respectively, under the terms of the Scheme
(collectively, the “Grants”)). Details of the Grants are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 6 January 2015 and 30
December 2015, respectively.

The status of the share options granted up to 31 December 2016 is as
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Number of unlisted share options
FETRREYE
Share price of
the Company
Name and As at Granted Cancelled/ Exercised As at as at the date of
category of 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December Date of grant of Vesting period of End of grant of share
participant 2016 the year the year the year 2016 share options share options exercise period options
ALARRH
RZB-x% FRits,/ RIZ-RE REBRER L
SRESARER -A-H EREH b3 ERAR TZAZT-B  BRERLEH BRESED RAERES BENER
(HKD per
Share)
(5H%7)
Directors
Ez
Mr. Zhao Jidong 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $1.48
5 January 2025*
HEREE “T-n% 50% : —F—7F “ZCoh%
—R7A MA-AZ-Z-F% —AEA
—RnA*
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025*
50%: —E—+&
MA-BE-Z-1&
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30 December 2025
“Z-1F 50% : —E—+t& —Z-nfE
+=A=FH MA-AZE-E-#7% +-A-tAR
+-A=tE*
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025
50% : —E—\E
MA-BE-Z-1&

+-A=+E*

ABRFMBERAT 201658 /1



Report of the Directors
EEERE

Number of unlisted share options

FEmERERE

Granted
during
the year

Cancelled/
lapsed during
the year

FhEH/
ERRH b3

Name and As at
category of 1 January
participant 2016

BRZB-RE

SREREREH -A-H

Exercised
during
the year

Enfig t=A=1-A

As at
31 December Date of grant of
2016 share options

RZB-RE
BRERLEH

End of
exercise period

Vesting period of
share options

RRESES fTEBERAH

Share price of
the Company
as at the date of
grant of share
options
FRARRH
RERERM
RENER
(HKD per
Sharg)
(BK#ET)

Mr. Ma Qinghai

SERLE

2,200,000 = =

2,200,000 = =

Other employees 7,000,000 - 1,082,000

EftER

10,600,000 = 1,300,000

2,200,000 6 January 2015

e !

2,200,000 30 December 2015

“Z-1f
+-R=1H

5,918,000 6 January 2015

“T-if
—R7rA

9,300,000 30 December 2015

Z2-1F
+-A=tH

Total 29,000,000 -
st

2,382,000

26,618,000

Notes:

ok

The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on *
6 January 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2015.

The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on **
30 December 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2015.

His

RBZER T —
MNERBLITE BAETARRBMAC

50%: 2 April 2016 to
5January 2025

50%: ZF—~E
MAZRZE-Z_h%
—RER*

50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025*
50% : —E—+F
NA-BE-Z-1f
b=l

50%: 2 April 2017 to
30 December 2025
50%: =5 —t& ZECERE
MA-AZ=Z-7% +-A=tAR
+ZA=tA"
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025
50% : ~F-N\F
MA—AE-Z-%F
+-h=+E*
50%: 2 April 2016 to
5 January 2025*
50% : —E—~E
MAZBZE-Z-0%
—AnA*

50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025

50% : ~E—+%E ZECRE
MA—-BE-Z-hE —ARA
—ARA*

50%: 2 April 2017 to
30 December 2025™

50%: —E—t% “EoRE
WA-ZAZ=Z-1% +ZA=t+AR
t=A=+a~

50%: 1 April 2018 to

30 December 2025

50%: = /\i

5 January 2025

ZZ-Rf
—AaA

29 December 2025

5 January 2025

29 December 2025

AN BB R AR R IRRT
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Report of the Directors
EEgWE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS RFEREXINRBELRS

AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Continuing Connected Transactions A FEBRBEXS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into the following continuing connected transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements set out
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out below:

Master Procurement Agreement

As Huvis Corporation is a substantial shareholder of Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Huvis Corporation is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2015, Huvis Corporation and Yongsheng
Chemical Fiber entered into an agreement pursuant to which the
Group agreed to purchase textile-related products for trading and
production of differentiated polyester filament yarn from Huvis
Corporation and/or its associate(s) from time to time for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on
31 December 2018 in accordance with the terms and conditions
stipulated therein (the “Master Procurement Agreement”). The
annual caps under the Master Procurement Agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
are RMB42,000,000, RMB50,000,000 and RMB60,000,000,
respectively.

BE - T-—RF+-_A=+—RHILMEFE"
REBFTZIATEET ETRANFEI4AZIH
RREFEEHRENFERERS -

HEREXZNFBDENTX:

AR EREHEHWisBEARQARIEZ AN B QA
XBCHENEERR BELTHRA KX g
HHuvis AR R AR EEEA L -

RZZE—RF+=-A=1+8" %= &tHuvis
BOKBRCEET Y —IEBE Bt AEBERE
R AR 5% 5T B AU R FR R R TR A AR =0 & 4
Huvis & sk BBt 2 A SR 45 45 40 B 2 S DA
TESREEZNbKGRS REA=F " 8
—E-RF-A—HEBEZZT—N\F+=A
=+ —HIE(EZRBHER]) - T REHEE
EZERF ZE—+LFRZE-N\FT=
A=+ RLE=AFESFNFELRHHAE
A R #42,000,0007T * A R #50,000,0007T &
A R #60,000,0007T °
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On 7 March 2017, the Group has further disclosed that the amount
of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the Master Procurement Agreement for the 11 months ended 30
November 2016 amounted to approximately RMB47,385,000,
which exceeded the 2016 annual cap as set out in the Master
Procurement Agreement. The Group further noted that the amount
of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
Master Procurement Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately RMB62,719,000. In response
to the exceeded amount and the expected increase in business
scale and transaction volume of the Group in the future in light of
the growth in business of the Group, in particular the production
of differentiated polyester filament yarn, during the past few
years, the annual caps for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Master Procurement Agreement for
the two years ending 31 December 2018 are revised from
RMB50,000,000 and RMB60,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 and
RMB100,000,000, respectively.

Details of the Master Procurement Agreement and the revised
annual caps are disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 30 December 2015 and 7 March 2017 respectively. Details
of the revised annual cap for the two years ending 31 December
2018 in respect of the Master Procurement Agreement are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7 March
2017.

Confirmation from the independent non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions had
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is
no available comparable terms, on terms no less favorable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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(B)

Confirmation from the auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board had
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain
assurance procedures on the continuing connected transactions.
Based on the work performed, except for the annual cap amount
of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
Master Procurement Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2016 had been amounted to RMB62,719,000, which exceeded
the 2016 cap of RMB42,000,000, the auditors of the Company
provided a letter to the Board confirming that nothing had come
to their attention that caused them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
as set by the Company.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 32 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction as defined under
the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except for those
disclosed above, in respect of which the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

(B)
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SUBSEQUENT IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER
THE REVIEW PERIOD

On 9 January 2017, Yongsheng Dyeing entered into the second
entrusted loan agreement with China Merchant Bank Hangzhou
Xiaoshan Branch (“CMB Xiaoshan”), pursuant to which Yongsheng
Dyeing has entrusted CMB Xiaoshan with an amount of RMB50,000,000
for the purpose of lending the same to an independent third party,
Saintyear Holding Co., Ltd for a period of six months. The interest rate of
the entrusted loan is 6.5% per annum and the loan period is six months.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 January 2017
for further details.

On 9 February 2017, the registered office of the Company has been
relocated to P.O. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands. The principal share registrar and
transfer office of the Company has been changed from Estera Trust
(Cayman) Limited to Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited at P.O.
Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-1001,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong is still maintained by Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

On 15 February 2017, Yongsheng Dyeing entered into asset
management agreements with LJZ Wealth Management (Shanghai)
Co. Limited (“LJZ Wealth Management”) and China Merchant Bank
Co. Limited Shanghai Branch (“CMB Shanghai”), pursuant to which
Yongsheng Dyeing agreed to participate in the asset management plan
operated by LJZ Wealth Management and to deposit to the designated
account with CMB Shanghai an investment amount of RMB30,000,000
in aggregate. The term is eight months from the date of depositing the
investment amount into the designated custodian account with CMB
Shanghai. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15
February 2017 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, there were no important events after the
Review Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has maintained appropriate Directors’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2016

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the financial year
ended 31 December 2016

AUDITORS

The financial statements now presented have been audited by Ernst &
Young. Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22 May
2017 to 25 May 2017, both days inclusive, for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming AGM to be held on
Thursday, 25 May 2017, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending the AGM, the Shareholders
should ensure that all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on 19 May 2017.

The Board recommends the payment of the Final Dividend of HK$0.035
per Share to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 5 June 2017. The payment of the
Final Dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM. If
the resolution for the Final Dividend is passed at the AGM, the register
of members will be closed from 1 June 2017 to 5 June 2017, both days
inclusive, and the Final Dividend is expected to be paid on Tuesday, 27
June 2017. In order to qualify for the Final Dividend, the Shareholders
should ensure that all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on 31 May 2017.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 187 to 188 of this
annual report.

By Order of the Board

LI Cheng

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Independent auditor’s report

e

R CTE e

Ernst & Young - =l Tel B 7E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BRDRAEE R Fax B E: +852 2868 4432
EY 1 Tim Mei Avenue hEAE221E ey.com
Central, Hong Kon
E 78] 3 9rone
To the shareholders of BKBRFEMPERATRE

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 186 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

HEERER

RREFXER

MREZEFREERERMNOBEAE SAHEH
MBERRNELRREENETR - ZEFRERER
MEZEBAHUBRRRHAEERERE  BH
Pre8RSEREHEFNER - TXHE LM
MEZMAREAT ZFREENER -

BB BITARE (KA EFRE R B HEA
EREE] —fHAnEE BREEREERENE
Fo Rt HPINBEZRERATREYE HMBERE
EREHRARNFEMERNERF BREFHNER
BREBEATEENER RRMBMEN S 68
BHRNEZ B RIBMHER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERTNAEEREERER

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

B SN ERERE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade receivables of RMB21,641,000
before provision for impairment of RMB1,198,000. As the fiber industry
continued to be impacted by certain macroeconomic challenges, the Group
experienced uncertainty over the collectability of trade receivables from some
customers.

RIZB-RF+ZA=+—H EXENRHEREAK%1,198,0007TH]
B 5 FEWRIA R A R #E21,641,0007T - A NI TREE T BB T REK
EHREAEE EEEHNMETEPKREE 5 EUGRIEEE T HE -

The determination as to whether a trade receivable is collectable involves
management judgement. Management considers specific factors such as
the age of the balances, location of customers, existence of disputes, recent
historical payment patterns and any other available information concerning
the creditworthiness of counterparties. Management uses this information to
determine whether a provision for impairment is required either for a specific
transaction or for a customer’s balance in total.

RETEZRKFIELE MO  BEHEARHE -BEEZENAER
ZRRBERNERRON TPAEMERE SEFEAUS T HE 2 EFER
REBAREPEENEMNAMAGEEN EREERZTENETER AR
X XRGIRBFEREL LEDRERE-
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Our audit procedures included sending trade
receivable confirmations and checking bank
receipts for the payment received subsequent to
year end. We also assessed the assumptions used
to calculate the impairment provision for trade
receivables by checking the ageing of receivables
and assessing significant overdue individual trade
receivables.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERTFNAEEREERER

Provision for impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

E S NS ERERFE (&)

We focused on this area because of the significant judgement required and the
materiality of the amounts involved.

BPRIEZA D RERESREARAE S R e RERAME -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BEREBEENERN G A B mRMFIR8 -

Inventory provision assessment

TR B

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded inventories of RMB47,593,000
which were material to the Group. Management judgement is required in
assessing if the carrying value is higher than the net realisable value (“NRV”)
of the inventories on hand at the year end, especially of those slow-moving
inventories which may become obsolete.

RZZE—RFTZA=+—H E£ENFEARK47,593,000T L EEEH
MEBEA-BREANGFAEAGFARFRFTENRAERSSSNA
SERE([AIERFE])  LARBLA A GARNFHER-

Significant judgements are also required in determining the write-down of
inventories to NRV which involves management’s expectations of the forecast
inventory sales and usage and the estimated selling price of inventory based on
the current market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature.

B BN = FT SRR ER TAEL ERAE - PN EERE YT
BHEEREAEMERBRBEE AT AMMGTHEE RO SHENUMEE
EmrBELRs-

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EREREEMERN G M B RARMEIRIT -

We attended inventory counts at all locations with
significant inventory balances, and performed
testing on the samples of inventories to assess their
cost and net realisable values.

B E BB REFE AR B2 B 30 4l
BFE AT S e M AT H AR f AT 3R %
EE

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s
inventory provision policy and checked the
calculation of the inventory provision based on
the Group’s policy. We evaluated management’s
assumptions used to calculate the provision by
checking the ageing of inventories, subsequent
sales and usage of inventories on a sampling basis.
BMREEEEFTERBER L REERENK
RERGFERBIFAESER - HMBEBMES
HEERFENRR FERENHEERAREAE
KA AEERERANEREBOHRR -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report
BIYZEMRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB ERS M BRRAREN
B (#&)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
eftERREMEEEKRAR

Year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE—T—

NFETZRA=+—RHILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ihg=2 AR¥ET R AREFT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEEK
REVENUE W 25 ) 580,651 491,165
Cost of sales HEK A (413,446) (349,742)
Gross profit EH 167,205 141,423
Other income and gains, net EHAabUg A R U 5 F 58 5 13,223 7,902
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (9,346) (8,544)
Administrative expenses TR (59,450) (57,435)
Finance costs B & R AR 7 (1,350) (975)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM REFELEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R B A A 6 110,282 82,371
Income tax expense ZECY 15 10 (21,711) (18,578)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM FAREFELEED
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B 88,571 63,793
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIEREET
Profit after tax for the year from FRARBRIEEEER
a discontinued operation ] Cke-inkl 11 - 363
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F 1A 5 ) 88,571 64,156
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME E 2l A
Other comprehensive income not TERAREBE
to be reclassified to profit or loss B=EYH
in subsequent periods: H2mmEA:
Exchange differences on translation of HMEMBMENIER 8
financial statements 116 291
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEEA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (MBRBIE) 116 291
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEKALLEE
FOR THE YEAR 88,687 64,447
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EffEEREMEEKAR
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_ZT— R E+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s ARMT T AREF T
Profit attributable to: AT G ® A :
Shareholders of the Company VNN 79,128 56,230
Non-controlling interests eI AR A = 9,443 7,926
88,571 64,156
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LA T &4 2 A Ut A 48 %8
Shareholders of the Company NN 3 79,244 56,521
Non-controlling interests eI AR A = 9,443 7,926
88,687 64,447
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZK‘A 7 % 3R & 1h & A% 2 K|
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic BN
— For profit for the year —F K& AR®RMB 198 cents?  AR™RMB 14.1 cents?
— For profit from continuing operations —REFELEEB R ARMRMB 198 cents?  ARMRVB 14.0 cents?
Diluted e
— For profit for the year —F A AR®RMB19.7 cents?  AR™RMB 14.0 cents?
— For profit from continuing operations — REAFELCE LR AR¥RMB 19.7 cents?  ARHRVB 13.9 cents?
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BOFBFRR R

31 December 2016 —ZE— XX+ _-_HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-XRE ZE—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s ARMT T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS SERMBBE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB L& 14 151,654 143,053
Prepayments for property, Y BB RS
plant and equipment B IR 906 2,561
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT T ERIA 15 29,336 30,150
Intangible assets | EE 16 5,962 6,395
Deferred tax assets BT IR EE 25 441 795
Total non-current assets ERENEEBTE 188,299 182,954
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 17 47,593 40,059
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWFIE R EREE 18 130,337 91,506
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE Ee Rk
other receivables H A e sk 19 10,682 6,195
Trust loan receivable JEWZFEE R 19 50,000 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERABZED
profit or loss EREE 20 173,852 30,448
Amounts due from related parties FE Y i & 75 BUIR 32 3,002 50,888
Pledged deposits EEAEFER 21 1,705 5,133
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEDY 21 67,362 139,487
Total current assets MENVEEMTE 484,533 363,716
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBE
Trade and bills payables B RN ERENRE 22 92,767 67,092
Amounts due to a related party e —RBBE T HUR 32 2,375 =
Other payables, advances from HMEMNRIE BFBRK
customers and accruals et R A 23 50,945 40,054
Government grants B & B 24 1,225 1,100
Income tax payable FERTFT S 11,075 2,724
Total current liabilities mMENBEEE 158,387 110,970
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 326,146 252,746
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT rEERABDAEE
LIABILITIES 514,445 435,700
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BB E
31 December 2016 —ZE— X F+-F=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s AR®T R AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E D=V
Government grants BT & B 24 13,735 13,507
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 25 3,497 2,101
Total non-current liabilities BB ERTE 17,232 15,608
Net assets FEE 497,213 420,092
EQUITY X
Equity attributable to shareholders of RNA EIAR R PE AL e
the Company
Share capital &N 26 3,165 3,165
Share premium B i B 26 195,859 216,330
Other reserves HabfEE 28 249,044 161,975
448,068 381,470
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R = 49,145 38,622
Total equity 1B 497,213 420,092
Li Cheng Zhao Jidong
=3 R
Director Director
- -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtREREE R

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE—_T— R NF+_A=+—HLEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KARRRER
Foreign Equity-
currency  Statutory settled Non-
Share Share  Retained translation surplus arrangement Other controlling Total
capital  premium  earnings*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserves* Total interests equity
HNERE  EEEH  ERAE
BRE  RHEE RERAN e RE RURE EBHRE @x FBREZ BEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETFR
(note 26)  (note 26) (note28)  (note 28)  (note 27)
(GEZ 7)) (Hiso8)  (Hses)  (Hfater)
At 1 January 2015 W=E-15%-HF-A 3,165 235,512 131,919 (1,817 16,793 - (46,130) 339,942 30,296 370,238
Proft for the year FEH = - 56230 - - - - 56230 79%6 64156
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMEARA
Exchange differences on translation BENBRANER 2R
of financial statements - - - 291 - - - 291 - 291
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENALE - - 56,230 201 - - - 56,521 7,926 64,447
Dividends paid to shareholders of AARRARRZARE
the Company = (19,182) = = S S S (19,182) S (19,182)
Divicends paid to non-controling interests ~ FI3EERER % TRk S - - - - - - - (3,600 (3,600
Appropriation to statutory reserves PREETRE - - (5,458) = 5458 = = = = -
Capttal injection from non-controling interests ~ 3F i E%/E 4 - - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Equity-settled share option arrangements REZEERER S - - - - - 4,189 - 4,189 = 4,189
At 31 December 2015 W=F-1F+=-A=1-H 3,165 216,330 182,691 (1,026) 22,251 4,189 (46,130) 381,470 38,622 420,092
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"E-f-H 3,165 216,330 182,691 (1,026) 22,251 4,189 (46,130) 381,470 38,622 420,092
Proft for he year EREH 5 - 7918 = 5 5 - 79128 90443 88571
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMEARA
Exchange differences on translation RERBREANELZE
of financial statements - - - 116 - - - 116 - 116
Total comprehensive income FAZERAEE
for the year - - 79128 116 - - - 79084 9443 83,687
Dividends paid to shareholders of AAARRRZARE
the Company - (20,471) - - - - - (20,471) - (20,471)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests ~ FZEZERER % AR S, - - - - - = = (4,320) (4,320
Appropriation to statutory reserves PREATEHE - - (16,449) - 16,449 - - - - -
Capttal injection from non-controling interests ~ 3F Mk i1 4 - - - - - - - - 5,400 5,400
Equity-settled share option arrangements et g ERER - - - - - 7,825 - 7,825 - 7,825
At 31 December 2016 RW=F-AF+=-A=1-H 3,165 195,859 245,370 (910) 38,700 12,014 (46,130) 448,068 49,145 497,213

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves

of RMB249,044,000 (2015: RMB161,975,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT—NF+_A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s ARMT T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM KEEEFRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: B 56 A A A -
From continuing operations REFBEEEE 110,282 82,371
From a discontinued operation REK IS EET - (1,217)
Adjustments for: HUATEEELRARE:
Finance costs A& AR 1,350 2,441
Interest income FLEWA (5,293) (5,270)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - RE&ZE
plant and equipment EE () 408 (36)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERTB ARk - (4,987)
Fair value gains, net: N EWRFERE
Financial assets at fair value through BATFETABRE
profit or loss SRMEE (6,444) (448)
Depreciation e 14 14,949 12,703
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 81 4= 11 70 & Fx I8 B 44 15 814 814
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b L E 16 1,066 942
Reversal of impairment of receivables FEMGRIB R B T (57) 87)
Write-down of inventories to their net TFE MR = H o &30 5E
realisable value - 1,376
Equity-settled share option expense NS EEBRERS 27 7,825 4,189
124,900 92,791
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,534) (50,244)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 FE W GRIE I FE U ZEHR IS 0 (38,831) (20,733)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and B & E b fE R IE
other receivables (#hn) Rk 43,522 (73,447)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets BATEFABSENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss (& hn) Rk 30,000 (30,000)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 M~ 518 I IR N 25,675 25,713
Increase in other payables, advances from  EMENZHIE EERZR N
customers and accruals FESTFRIELE AN 13,617 67,697
Cash generated from operations KEFFIRE 191,349 11,777
Interest received 2 U H B 2,102 5,270
Income tax paid ERATEH (11,610) (18,921)
Net cash flows from/(used in) used in rEEBRE/ (FR)
operating activities RemEFRE 181,841 (1,874)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHBEERE
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_ZT— R NE+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ih=s ARMT T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFSAGRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U F 8 6,167 =
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BMELEREER
plant and equipment (22,550) (29,881)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWHE  MELZEERR
plant and equipment FriS 508 247 5,440
Additions to other intangible assets RNEEMEREE 16 (633) (1,139)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss 2N (170,000) -
Increase in trust loan receivable FEUL & 5T B FRIE N 19 (50,000) =
Decrease in pledged deposits [REErEE R 9,195 23,090
Additions to pledged deposits FTIEEEAER (5,767) (29,867)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 32 - 35,755
Net cash flows (used in)/from ®EES (FTA) /g
investing activities RemEFRE (233,341) 3,398
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMEFBAGRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FERITER - 35,000
Capital injection of non-controlling interests ~ FE¥EAREZS KT & 5,400 1,200
Repayment of bank loans EERITER - (2,000)
Dividends paid B E (20,471) (19,182)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests MIEERERE IR E (4,320) (3,600)
Interest paid SRR (1,350) (2,441)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEES (FTA) FTiE
financing activities RemEFRE (20,741) 8,977
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HeRReEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA) /s hnF 5 (72,241) 10,501
Cash and cash equivalents FUReRRESEED
at beginning of year 139,487 128,695
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  #MNfE [ 3R & 8 1) 57 28 F 58 116 291
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRASRREFED
AT END OF YEAR 21 67,362 139,487
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB BRI

31 December 2016 —ZT—XF+_-_A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARREEESR

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the KBFMBEAERAR ([RAAR])RZE—=
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19 April FMATNLBERBERAEHERRE(ZE—
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the ZEEIA)ERSHEIMKIAER %
Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The AR QA AR B A 5 9% =E 5 b ik & Clifton
address of the Company’s registered office is Clifton House, 75 House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands °

Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally AARIREMBAR ([RNEE])EBEHE
engaged in the development and manufacture of polyester filament ARZEFE ([FERDHERAERYUEKGR
yarns and 3D printing materials, the provision of dyeing services of 4 R 3DITENM# - IR E RN mE R L R
differentiated polyester filament fabric and the trading of polyester BRkeRHES -

filament yarns in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of directors, the holding company and the ultimate EERE ARAIMNERA G RREERA A
holding company of the Company is Ever Thrive Global Limited RERIRIRBER AR ([HEE]) (—HEER
(“Ever Thrive”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin BEXHEE(|RBRELEE )Mkt haE
Islands (the “BVI”) and controlled by Mr. Li Cheng (the “Controlling AL ([ERBRED EGBHAAE) -

Shareholder”).

Information about subsidiaries MEARNER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: AABIHMBARMFBOT
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully-paid Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BERTRAR
g TR MR RER RAFE FARELEEEDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Yongsheng Advanced Limited liability company US$1 100 - Investment holding company
Materials (BVI) Limited incorporated in the BVI in Hong Kong
(“Yongsheng BVI")
KEFHH (BV) BRA A REBRTHSTMALN 1ET REBREREER
([5ke&Bv]) BRRA
Yongsheng Advanced Limited liability company US$1 - 100 Investment holding company
Materials (HK) Limited incorporated in Hong Kong in Hong Kong
(“Yongsheng HK")
BN (BE)ERDA RERTMKLNERRAR B REBRERESZR
(IkEEE])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARKREBEEF (&)

(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARIMNER (&)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully-paid Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BRTRAR
£ BRI/ EMHRES BAFE FARAEEEERDLL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Limited liability company RMB200,000,000 = 100 Provision of dyeing services
Dyeing and Finishing incorporated in the PRC inthe PRC
Company Limited
(*Yongsheng Dyeing’)
MMERHKBRLBEERAA RREZMKINERRAR UN:: R ERERE RS
(kERE]) 200,000,0007
Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Limited liability company RMB58,000,000 - 70 Development and manufacture
Chemical Fiber Company Limited incorporated in the PRC of polyester filament yarns in
(*Hangzhou Fiber”) the PRC
MMERHXREBRAR WA LN ERA A Nz RhEREREERRRE
(MMiegl) 58,000,0007¢
Nantong Yongsheng Fiber Limited liability company RMB30,000,000 = 92 Development and manufacture
Advanced Materials incorporated in the PRC of polyester flament yarns in
Company Limited the PRC
(“Nantong Fiber”)
AEXEETHHERAT REEFME NG R A ;S RPERE R ke R4
([Fgmis]) 80,000,0007T
Jiangsu Yongsheng Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 60  Development and manufacture
3D Printing Advanced Materials incorporated in the PRC of 3D printing materials in
Company Limited the PRC
(“Yongsheng 3D Printing’)
ITHXEZRITEFMRNERRA RREEMKUNERAR AEB R B R & R s
(KEE=#FTEN]) 10,000,0007T SHITEIN R
Jiangsu Yongsheng High Polymer Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 976  Research and development
Advanced Materials Research incorporated in the PRC of high polymer advanced
Institute Company Limited materials in the PRC
(“Yongsheng High Polymer”)
TEKERD FHMETER RAREERKINERAR ARE RABEHERAE
BRAR ([XESHT)) 10,000,0007 BAFHMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X S T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the shareholders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO IR R MR
31 December 2016 —ZE— X+ -/F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

22 S BERKENEH

AEEEREAR-ZT-—R"EF-A—-Bx2i’&

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and

amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. The nature of each new standard and
amendment is described below:

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Operations.: Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests Regulatory
IFRS 14 Deferral Accounts

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The above new standards and amendments have had no
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O R AR MIEE

31 December 2016 —ZT—RE+_-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to
adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS
12 Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS
1 Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28
Included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts®

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®
Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses’
Transfer of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. In April
2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on
1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15
upon adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=Xy S T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

1 OO Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2016

24 FESTHERE

EBREHREE

EBEHERWBEAR - FTE R ERK
BHENQATESE AXEEMEREEDN
WEARATE AEEHMEEQRMESR
NAEFEN BB KA B A ERFT Y & ) H2
REMBITHORAE DA - R BEEHEH
MmE AEEAMEERAFELDEMEER
AR BRI EELLD A EERKER AR
ST ES A ARNEBRERLHIDEF
BENMEBARMNIFERED - A EMIE
ZRER A DR AT EFE - WEEERAR
EERHE-

EAKBEWE -REBE  HRESOGER
REREENBBEMNAREE R EERE
ERAENRE MEHBEEDBERIEE-
HEERDARBAREAONRARNITET
Ao

fird 2 P& BOETT R A A B - RISTAT#E A HO AR A4
SRERBERHN R FEENRE MAEL
AT s S R 1R X R e FE R

WEDBEBERNEARXAKRBEREEBRRZA
FEBR-HIXARERBELEENARE A
BATEFE TRERERLRTEED MK
IAREFE D WBEENE AR
BREENERAARR-

HBONTERAFE NEEBERE S8R
SRR R BUE R AR B AT A MR T
IR O X P {E 4R RE - BB P WUB R BB nl B B
ERAAZEAENZE - WZAREREMEA
BZMERMKBEEFENDFE  ReFH
BREEZENESAERRZEEIE NG -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwiill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTBERBE (F)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.25% t0 2.5%
Plant and machinery 6.4% to 9%
Vehicles 18% t0 22.5%

Office equipment, leasehold

improvement and others 18% to 45%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and equipment under installation, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESHHERE (F)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) BIELEE (BERH) (FE)
(Continued)
Technical know-how 2 i 0 78k
Acquired technical know-how of manufacturing processes is Fr1s B AR BIR MBI AR iR E 2 K ANE
shown at historical cost. Acquired technical know-how are PR FTESMBIMABIZES A B ANEE
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the know- ERRARNBE TR ER - WHR10F Al £ A F 5
how and are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10 NEH o
years.
Computer software FTE BB
Acquired computer software is shown at historical cost and is FrERE Tt ERE M IRE L N ABEYR Wik
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific BEEETERHMEENKRNBTRER ZFK
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful RP1OF (BT Al E A F B A B 8H

lives of 10 years.

Sewage pipe usage right SEKEERE

Acquired sewage pipe usage right is shown at historical cost and FrS 80 5 /KR ABERE LK AES R I
is capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the usage REGSERERARMEENKABRTER B
right. The costs are amortised over the contractual lives of 20 B AR P20 & #)F BRI BN -

years.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is FENERBEEELENASIEENTSIARE
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate B A ABEARMCWIEL - AEBERM AT
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that M ERSEREREEAEHEHEASEE
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its EEKZEENEER WHENFERARLEZ
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future BE ZEEREERREENZ: EGAA
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the BIRFTEAIA B A R F P BRI B S e S m] 52
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during iR - THAZTEANERRAERZHR
the development. Product development expenditure which does EAER X

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTBERBE (F)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X S T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in finance costs for loans and in other
income and gains, net for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X S T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
administrative expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to the ultimate holding company and related parties
and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings is as
follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
price less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTBERBE (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTBERBE (F)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the rendering of services, when the services have been
rendered and it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the relevant fees can be measured
reliably;

(b)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(¢)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using
a binomial model, further details of which are given in note 27 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

24 TESTHHEME (&)

RoE#ZH (&)

PR AR AEE A 5 B0 B AN 3 ) e e ) A PR IR IR T 2
FRBR LR EEORENEE R
ER-REEENSHREMRARAEERS
ERNRFRX RREERBEBHROMX
ERAEEHREEEBNRATAMBENKE
EEt - NEMEBEEP ORI A HEZH
RS RERFEERNRFAHATNES-

EEOHRNRHAAXTER T2 RRE
NIEMISRIBIGH BT HERZFEED
AR FRAAKREHERERBNEETA
BENREMRT THRREFRBRNELAR
HI N B A o [0 3 A Y 7518 30 S AR BE AR 7% & 5Kk
B (] H b IR AR R IE BB B IR 1 - BR IE B = 51
B IR Ko, RR B G D RIFE S R R
REHRN R FERNREHAEHE MR-

HERREEERIETISRE R HIRS 50 &
RIEFBOLB I SERFAL - HEHREE
MG HFERBIGT XZEREE M TR
LRIERBGHERTER EMBEEMBRER
SRS R RE ERK -

A SRR IRRABER A6 %A
MREBGH MERFRIXRI S8 BNEH
R TR AT R B T o UE S B AT BB RE AT
ERGENBRNERI AN EEREMLSE
BEXE QAR

xEEFERaERAF 20166 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X S T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined
by the laws of the countries in which it has operations.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 20% of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”"); because most of the subsidiaries use Renminbi (‘RMB”)
as their functional currency, these financial statements are
presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTBERBE (F)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas companies which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

1 22 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2016

Shex ()

BELRAKAINET ENIFE B IHE AP
RHEAMERBE - LINEURFEFEN
FEBEBNEEATEEANERRE -
HUARFEFENIFEEIRE TELNKRER
BREERRZEE A TFEZPNRENEE—
HOMERFELEHBEENE M2 mEAK
BaEhEIANBEENBREZRTIINEME
EW A IBREPHER) ©

ETBINIBARINNERRE SARB AN
B -RBEMR ZFERNEERABER
BEMRERMNEZTBE/ARE MEBSE
RIBFENMETFHETLESARK -

PLLEAME L ZERN L2 ERARER I
RINEMBERFBEARGT -NEEBINEBE
SR SN EB BN E b2 ERAR DR
BEPHER -

REHRSRERNE  BIMERRNRS
MERRERERMERNETBRE/AR
K BIRARBEAFEAREELNRDR
ERFEMNMETFHETLESAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends by certain
subsidiaries according to the relevant tax rules enacted in the
jurisdictions, is subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution
of dividends. At 31 December 2016, the carrying value of deferred
tax liabilities relating to withholding tax was approximately
RMB8,685,000 (2015: RMB7,251,000).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2016, no
impairment loss has been recognised for non-financial assets
(2015: Nil).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The outcome of their actual utilisation may
be different. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised deductible temporary differences at 31 December
2016 was approximately RMB5,943,000 (2015: RMB5,885,000).
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses at 31 December 2016 was approximately RMB274,000
(2015: RMB127,000). Further details are contained in note 25 to
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various regions. As certain
matters relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgments based on
currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for corporate income
taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
corporate income tax and tax provisions over the period in which
the differences are realised. The income tax expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were approximately RMB21,711,000
(2015: RMB18,578,000). At 31 December 20186, the carrying value
of income tax payable was approximately RMB11,075,000 (2015:
RMB2,724,000).

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables.
The identification of impairment requires management’s judgments
and estimates. Where the actual outcome is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact on the carrying
values of the trade and other receivables and the impairment
loss over the period in which such estimate has been changed.
At 31 December 2016, the provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables was approximately RMB1,293,000 (2015:
RMB1,350,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting date.
At 31 December 2016, the net carrying value of inventories was
approximately RMB47,593,000 (2015: RMB40,059,000).

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —ZT—XRE+-A=+—H

TESFHE R A (&)

fEEr REAE & ()
Frig®t

AEBEARZEMRBMAMER -BRE
HERMREEHEMESHABNETSEE "
WMREELEMSHEBER ARERKE
MO REEE EZRAREMBREABRRELR
B kAH MESEENREBELER
BN REEcE FRERBVEEE
SIRMBMCEMSHEBBERE RERE
—E—ARAF+_A=+—BHLFE FEM
A4 aARE21,711,000c (ZE—RHF:
AR #18,5678,0007T) M ZE—RFE+ A
=+ —H ENAEEOREEENARARE
11,075,0007T (ZZ—HF : AR¥2,724,000
JL) °

ESERSARAMBERSARE

B RUGRIEREMERFBERERESEZE S
JRE L 3R 78 K E Ath JE Ui 38 AT Uk [B] 4 /9 RF T
VB o & 12 2 78 3t 1 8 R (B 1 8 2 B R A st o
WEBRERBINRE M EEZEBTE
BT ES IR E 5 e W B & H b WK
BHEEELRREEBE - R=_T—X<F+=A
=+—H" 85 ERIE Rt EREIERR
BEREBLH B ARE1,293,000T (ZZ—HEF:
AR #1,350,0007C) °

FEM R FE

FENERFEAAFESBRPHMGE
EEBRGETHER T ZEGHFAERRATM
MAEEEMNEREERNBELSRMIEL -
ZERAUEETINESHEERES-
EEBREREAHEFTIEZEMHT R =
T-XNF+_A=+—8 EENEEFED
BARMAT 593,000t (ZE—RF: AR
40,059,0007¢) °

KB EERAT 20165F#H

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based compensation

The fair value of most share options granted by the Group is
estimated using the binomial model. The use of a valuation model
requires management to make certain assumptions with respect to
selected model inputs. Management estimates expected volatility
based on the historical volatility of the comparable company’s
stock. Expiration date is the basis for determining the expected
life of an option. The risk-free interest rate is based on treasury
yield curve rates with a remaining term which approximates the
expected life assumed at the date of grant. Changes in these
input variables would affect the amount of expense associated
with share-based compensation. The compensation expense
recognised for all share-based awards is net of estimated
forfeitures. The Company estimates forfeiture rates based on
historical analysis of option forfeitures. If actual forfeitures vary from
estimated forfeitures, adjustments to compensation expense may
be required. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the equity-
settled share option expense was approximately RMB7,825,000
(2015: RMB4,189,000).

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

— Production: Production of polyester filament yarns and 3D
printing materials;

— Processing: Dyeing and processing of differentiated
polyester filament yarn;

— Trading: Trading of polyester filament yarns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit before tax without
allocation of interest income/(costs) and other expenses which are
not occurred directly for operating segments.

Segment assets exclude corporate cash and deferred tax assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate accruals, payroll payable,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

No further geographical segment information is presented as the
Group’s revenue from external customers is derived mainly from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets are located
outside Mainland China.

4.
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B O R AR MIEE

31 December 2016 —ZT—RE+_-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RBEFIER (F)
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments L& o EB
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-E-—RE+-A=t-HLEE
Production  Processing Trading Total
£ mI g5 @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tx AR%®TRT ARETxR
Segment revenue 2 s
Sales to external customers HETFIARE 377,469 175,781 27,401 580,651
Revenue from continuing operations sl E S0l 580,651
Segment results SEEE 57,085 55,352 682 113,119
Reconcilations: Hk:
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AR REMF AT (6,780)
Interest income FEWA 5,293
Finance costs BERK (1,350)
Profit before tax from continuing operations ST R R T ATE A 110,282
Segment assets PTHEE 336,614 304,224 = 730,838
Reconciliations: #EE:
Corporate and other unallocated assets DA REMAIEEE 40,110
Elimination of intersegment receivables B D A IR (98,116)
Total assets BEE 672,832
Segment liabilities FHEE 122,970 149,745 - 272,715
Reconciliations: #E:
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities R REMAIREE 1,020
Elimination of intersegment payables B SEAERRIER (98,116)
Total liabllities BEE 175,619
Other segment information HitpHER
Depreciation and amortisation MEREHE 9,426 7,403 - 16,829
Reversal of provision for impairment of FEW TR R ERER D
receivables (57) - - (57)
Capital expenditure* BAXRHET 17,276 7,562 = 24,838
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and & BAHYBEREDE BERBEUAR

equipment and intangible assets.
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B Ot IR R MR
—FE—-XRE+-A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued)

31 December 2016

4. KESTHER (F)

mnr E

28 (%)

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE-F-O5+-A=t-BLHFE

Production Processing Trading Total
EE mT B5 @it
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT AR®FTR ARETR
Segment revenue 2 EBUL 2
Sales to external customers* HETINARP 310,024 176,863 4,278 491,165
Revenue from continuing operations BEREEBN W 491,165
Segment results IR 47,083 40,568 314 87,965
Reconcilations: R -
Corporate and other unallocated expenses REREMARD IR 9,727)
Interest income ME WA 5,108
Finance costs A& AR (979)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 43 A8 45 4% 2 755 O BR B AT Jas 1l 82,371
Segment assets PHEE 269,200 373,573 = 642,773
Reconciliations: AR -
Corporate and other unallocated assets NAREMADIREE 5,979
Elimination of intersegment receivables 38 73 50 F) & B U SR E (102,082)
Total assets BEE 546,670
Segment liabilities PEHEE 108,197 117,090 - 225,287
Reconciliations: Eaf
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties N REMADEEE 3,373
Elimination of intersegment payables 58 73 50 P &9 B A~ 3R 0E (102,082)
Total liabilties waf 126,578
Other segment information HibpEHER
Depreciation and amortisation & Kk g 3 7,294 7,011 = 14,305
Write-down of inventories to FEMBEZ A #IR5E
their net realisable value - 304 - 304
Reversal of provision for impairment of FEWGRIB R (B B
receivables ©) (78) - 87
Capital expenditure* BT 20,193 6,463 = 26,656

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

*

EXARAXBRAENE BERKREN
NETEE -

MERE IIAXPHNRH 2 WS AEE K
FHI10%3L A £ o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -HtW AR K=

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of services provided WAERFAINIKRERERBESITNEERE B
and goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts RERBERELHEEMNERFE
during the year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing REFELEEEBHRA - R A R =D
operations is as follows: O/ CNE
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —T—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFIT
Revenue LON
Production HE 377,469 310,024
Processing mT 175,781 176,863
Trading 25 27,401 4,278
580,651 491,165
Other income and gains, net B AR KR FE
Bank and other interest income SRIT M E AT B U A 5,293 5,108
Fair value gains on financial assets BEATEFAEENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss B A FERE 6,444 448
Rental income HEUWA 570 439
Government grants (note 24) BT & B (KMI5E24) 1,996 2,911
Foreign exchange differences, net PENZR TR (509) (654)
Others EAh (571) (350)
13,223 7,902
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived

at after charging/(crediting):

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB R M

31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

6. PBR®L

AEBFPFBEEEEBHORDANEFENR

EVISRV2

Bl & A

(FFA) AT EERFH

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥F T AR®TT
Cost of inventories sold EEFERKA 318,449 243,220
Cost of services provided 2R MRS B R A 94,997 106,522
Depreciation * PrE- 14 14,949 12,549
Amortisation of other intangible assets * H {th 4 Jf7 & 2= 4 35~ 16 1,066 942
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FE T + #h 8 & FoIE 15
payments * 814 814
Reversal of provision for B 5 eI SR IE B B ] 1B
impairment of trade receivables - (78)
Reversal of provision for impairment of — E 4t i g 3% T8 e (B 185 0] 188 5
other receivables (57) ®)
Minimum lease payments under REHENSZERENK
operating leases
— Office rental - WAEHES 251 416
Auditors’ remuneration 2 BRI & B 950 1,050
Employee benefit expense EERANAXZ (BEES L&
(including directors’ and chief ST ASEH) * -
executive’s remuneration) *:
Wages and salaries TERF® 54,426 53,339
Pension scheme contributions RIKES 2R
(defined contribution schemes) (EREMEE R 4,134 3,433
Equity-settled share option AR RE A ERE IR A o BE
arrangements 7,825 4,189
Research and development costs T B B A 15,436 12,584
Foreign exchange differences, net I 5 BB R R 509 654
Fair value gains, net: N B FEE
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABENSRIEE
through profit or loss (6,444) (448)
Bank interest income RATH B UA (5,293) (5,108)
Gain on disposal of items of HEYE . -MER
property, plant and equipment ETE B U (408) (36)
* Part of the depreciation, the amortisation of other intangible * REEH&E EMESEEESE AN

assets and prepaid land lease payments and employee
benefit expense for the year are included in “Cost of sales”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

HER
AR B
ZNI

HEHE N EB RN —#OE
BaRkEMEEBARAN [HEK
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERAX

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEXKAHDTWT
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT

Interest on bank loans, RITER - BEIR

overdrafts and other loans HiERF L 1,350 975

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBSITHAEHM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive, Mr. Li Cheng’s remuneration for the EERZETERABZHE L ERF AR B
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), BEEMHRA - BE CRFHEH) %383(1)@):
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (o) ) RMER ARF (HEEENZER) R
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ) BoEHWTAT -

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2016 2015

—E—XF —ZET—AHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREFT

Fee we 627 577
Other emoluments: HEme

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 1,491 1,467

Performance related bonuses R A AL 3,976 3,767

Pension scheme contributions BIRE BN 90 15

Equity-settled share option arrangements RS E BREZ S 3,434 2,108

9,618 7,934
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note
27 1o the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

8.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

EERESTTRAESHM (F)

FRBREBAARNEREFS ETESEH
HBEAREEREHORBERBIRE £ PF
BENRPBERRMT27 - ZEBREN R FE
RELBEHEE CREBMNBEaRREME
HBAKRER MBERAFEMBERROESHE
EERELNEBEERESTHRABHFMORES
£t o

() BYFHTES

FA MBIFRATEENBEM

the year were as follows: S &
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Mr. Shiping James Wang FittF s 86 79
Mr. Wong Wai Ling HERXT 111 103
Mr. Wang Huaping FEFLE 86 79
283 261

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2015:
Nil).

FABEEME RN TELIFNTT
Ex(ZT—0F:8)-
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive

8. EERRSTHRAEHM (&)

(b) MITEENHATES

directors
2016 —B-XRF
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension Equity-settled
and benefits related scheme  share option
Name of Directors Fees in kind bonuses contributions arrangements Total
B 2ER REEX e BELEE
Espg ik ENER AN SESR  BREZS @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TRE ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR AR%¥TrR
Executive directors; BES:
Mr. Li Cheng FREE 86 733 930 20 - 1,769
Mr. Zhao Jidong HERLE 86 457 1,330 35 2,109 4,017
Mr. Li Conghua TEELL 86 - - - - 86
Mr. Ma Qinghai BE8%E 86 301 1,716 35 1,325 3,463
344 1,491 3,976 20 3,434 9,335
Independent non-executive diectors B IFHITEE:
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFEE 86 - - - - 86
Mr. Wong Wai Ling BERNT 11 - - - - 111
Mr. Wang Huaping TETRE 86 - - - - 86
283 - - = - 283
627 1,491 3,976 20 3,434 9,618
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBETHAEEHM (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITESHIHITES (F)
directors (Continued)
2015 —E-REF
Salaries,

allowances  Performance Pension  Equity-settled

and benefits related scheme  share option
Name of Directors Fees inkind bonuses  contrioutions  arrangements Total

HH 2R R RBER Bhe Riges

EENA ik ENET TE4L AT BRERH @t

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB'O0D
ARETE ARETR ARETR AR®TRZ ARETR ARETR

Executive directors; BiTES:
M. Li Cheng Sk 79 484 895 4 - 1,462
Mr. Zheo Jdong mEEE 79 484 1305 4 1,205 3,257
M. Li Conghua FRELE 79 170 - 3 - 252
. Ma Qinghei EBEL 79 39 1477 4 813 2,700
316 1,467 3,767 15 2,108 7,673
Independent non-executive dectors B IFHITEE:
M. Shiping James Wang FHFEE 79 - - - - 79
Mr. Wong Wai Ling BERNT 103 - - - - 103
Mr. Wang Huaping TETEE 79 - - - - 79
261 - - - - 261
577 1,467 3,767 15 2,108 7,934
There was no arrangement under which a director or the FAN WEAMNESHHZRITHRABR
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ESREREEMFTFILZHE -

during the year.
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o.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included 3
executive directors (2015: 3 executive directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining 2 (2015: 2) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

hEBREHHMES

FA AEESFNERERE=-2QTES
(ZZ—RHF ZBHTES)  BENFHHF
BENEXHES B TME (ZE—HF MW
H)ERFMES (YLFEARREFHEZERIT
BAB)RERANOHMFEBOT:

2016 2015

ZE-XRE —T—hfF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEREYEA 501 434
Performance related bonuses MRS SIEAD 1,684 1,280
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIHE R 47 9
Equity-settled share option arrangements & 5 B AR 2 Bk 1,854 814
4,086 2,537

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HFUN T T BERFEENIEZSTRAER
R HMES AZBWT:

2016 2015

-t ZT-hF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 821,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0015% 7T 21,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0015% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1 -
2 2

During the year and prior years, share options were granted to two
non-director highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and BVI.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are
subject to profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2015:16.5%).

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC having
operations only in Mainland China are subject to PRC enterprise
income tax on the taxable income as reported in their PRC
statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant PRC
income tax laws. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces
a wide range of changes which include, but are not limited to,
the unification of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and
foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and with
approval from the tax authorities in charge, two of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Yongsheng Dyeing and Nantong Fiber, qualified
as High and New Technology Enterprises, are entitled to the
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% for three years from
2015 to 2017.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and with
approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Hangzhou Fiber, qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise, was entitled to the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for three years from 2014 to 2016.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on the dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable to 5% withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of their earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totaled approximately RMB96,720,000 at 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB96,720,000). In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

10. FAIBHMAX

RERASHERRBRELEHENERRR X
BAREBARHESHERRABRZESH
AL PSR -

AEBMBEEEFMERLOWEBRRHERE
FISHE16.5% (ZZE—HF :16.5% ) BHAM
I8 o

AN B ET A R R B A A P B K BE A E Y
WEARZARERFBRETERE (RIEHERET
BIFTSBUAEH AR ) R 2MAERH AR
MBS EMBSR - PREGEMSHIESIA—
RONE  BEETRERABEANERERINED
¥HAMEHES—R25% -

RETEB@ERERAREEBERE KA
HEofE - AN SR B H b R B A Rk B R K
BKEAEBKRRHRMEE AER_-F
—hFE_ZE—+tHF=FMEZH15%NEEDL
ETES LR

REFPEBBEEERAREAERGEH
Mt AEEED —RHMBRAMMEES
BERRARHRMEE AR _F—NFE
—E-RF=FREH15%NEBLEMESH

%o

BEFERCEMBSHRE EPEKIHOIINE
TERBINEEEST KR EEHBMI0%E
MK -BERATR_TETENF—A—BELE
BoBEARZEELF+_A=+—HENE
Flof P BB GINEEENREERIT AR
B4 BT EARENENH R - AEE
EmBrIaeBR S AT REK LM B AR
BT )\FE— A — BEBEN AR %
RIAR BB 5% BT - R T —F+=A
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. T8 (&)
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended HE_ZT—RFrk_FT—HF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2016 and 2015 are: LEFE - EHAIHETZHEMIE > OT
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEFT
Current tax BNEARE 1B 19,961 12,349
Deferred tax EREFE IR 1,750 6,229
Total tax charge for the year FAMBEL HE5E 21,711 18,578
Reconciliation of the tax expense and the accounting profit HIERZ B aFRARQ R RENB AR
multiplied by the statutory rates for the countries in which the FrERKREEERENERNT

Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled:

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARETT
Profit before tax from continuing operations RELEEEBBRERNRF 110,282 82,371
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 2 BLE TE B2 (25%) 5T B HY
the PRC (25%) L] 27,571 20,593
Effect of difference for HEEBMEHEEZE2NZE
Hong Kong income tax rate 628 52
Effect of preferential enterprise income tax rate EEDEMEBRERNFTE (12,337) (8,462)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 03 A 2 2,873 1,285
Change of tax rates RS - 3,036
Withholding tax TE 4,629 3,368
Additional deduction of research and o 2 K AN Y BB SNHURL
development cost (1,653) (1,294)
Tax at the effective income tax rate 19.7% REBREBE19.7%
(2015: 22.6%) (CE—FHF:226%)
FTEMBIE 21,711 18,578
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B Ot IR R MR
31 December 2016 —ZE— X F+-/F=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11, RIEREEK

On 5 May 2015, the Group entered into agreements with certain RZE—AFRAAREA ASEBRETHE
related parties to dispose of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Falutpa HEMMNELXREIINESS
Foreign Trading Company Limited and Yongsheng (HK) RAFIRKE (BB BEERAR ([HEE
International Co., Limited (the “Disposal Group”). The Disposal H]) HESEFEXEHBEMBRERE
Group was mainly engaged in the trading of textile raw materials SEG TeERGER& ([BE505]) - HE
and products, excluding polyester filament yarns (the “Trading EFNHEER-_E—RENA+—BREK"
Segment”). The disposal of the Disposal Group was completed on HYBKERETHITALEDHERNN T
11 August 2015 and its financial information is no longer included A e

in the note for operating segment information.

The results of the Disposal Group for the year are presented below: FRN-HESEBEMNEEZNNOT:
2015
—T—hHF
RMB’000
AR FT
Revenue e 291,628
Expenses X (296,365)
Finance costs BhE KA (1,467)
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation R SR BT AT ES 1B (6,204)
Gains on disposal of the Disposal Group HENEEENKE 4,987
Income tax FriS®t 1,580
Profit for the year from the discontinued operation FAR BRI T 05 T 363
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11, RIEREEK (&)
(CONTINUED)
The net cash flows incurred by disposal group are as follows: HEEBREENBE SR FENT:
2015
—ZE—hF
RMB’000
ARBFT
Operating activities L ES (34,699)
Investing activities HEEE =
Financing activities BEEE 33,932
Net cash outflow RERHFE (767)
Earnings per share: FRAT :
Basic, from the discontinued operation HEAR - RERIEEEHET AR ERMB 0.09 cents
Diluted, from the discontinued operation BE - RERIEEEER AEERVB 0.09 cents?
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) RIEREEBHSRERNRE SR TIREIA
from the discontinued operation are based on: T&EMmHE :
2015
—ZE—h%F
Profit attributable to shareholders of ANA EIAR SR PE A 5 F — B AR R #E
the Company — basic and diluted (RMB’000) (AR®EFT) 363
Weighted average number of ARt EERERZ N &I BN TH
ordinary shares for basic EPS (note 13) (FF3E13) 400,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EEEEZ 2T BRMNETHE (ME13)
adjusted for the effect of dilution (note 13) 402,173,120
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BRI
31 December 2016 —E— X XF+=-F=+—H
12. DIVIDENDS 12. K2
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Interim — HK$0.03 (equivalent to RMB0.02576) A #§ — & % X i@ A%0.037%8 7T
(2015: HK$0.02 (equivalent to RMB0.0164)) (HHE RN AR0.025767T)
per ordinary share (ZZE—ARF:0028T
(HERARO.01647T) ) 10,305 6,560
Proposed final - HK$0.035 (equivalent to BOR R B — G T @ AR0.035/8 7T
RMB0.0310) (2015: HK$0.03 (equivalent to (H8E K AR0.03107T)
RMBO0.0254)) per ordinary share (ZZE—R%F:0038T
(HHERAR0.02547T) ) 12,411 10,166
22,716 16,726

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year
attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic EPS calculation, plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on the deemed exercise of all
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

R AR RS AR AR AR R E
K® L HAEE

KAARRELEEREF

BREABNSBTIRARBRIREMF R4
MBEAFAEHTEBRW BT HHE -

BREERMNESEIIEARRRREMEEH
B DA A B 21T BB R0 I0HE P9 B (R
HEREARBNFAEBE) BN LEEBESHR
BEEEEERRITEA L BRAMBERTHY
R DN I B E o
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SOt SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —ZT—RE+_-_A=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic

and diluted EPS computations:

13. ARFARREEESRERN (&)

AT RBRAREFTEGSRERREER MO EA
Ko Bt B

2016 2015
=E-—RF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMEFT
Earnings: EF:
Profit attributable to shareholders of PA/NGIE &Y Xyl
the Company — basic and diluted —EARR#BE
From continuing operations SIBICEETS 79,128 55,867
From a discontinued operation KRR EETS - 363
79,128 56,230
Number of shares
BROEHE
2016 2015
—EB—XEF —T—RF
Shares: B4
Weighted average number of ARETEERETR 6
ordinary shares for EPS calculation LB ke 19 & 400,000,000 400,000,000
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEre —TRRMETEE:
number of ordinary shares:
Share options B M 1,723,950 2,173,120
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & IE #5852 2249
adjusted for the effect of dilution TR I 401,723,950 402,173,120
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y¥E - BERRE
Office Construction
Plant and equipment Leasehold in
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others  improvements progress Total
WAERME
BT  BERER RE REf BELE ERIR @zt

RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR  AR¥TR  ARETT  ARETx

At1 January 2016, net of accumulated WZE-~4-A-R"

depreciation BB ETE 58,863 79,202 1,408 1,358 305 1,787 143,053
Additions RE 1,197 7,074 980 633 749 13,572 24,205
Transfer o 76 2,076 - - = (2,152) =
Depreciation provided during the year FREROTE (2,628) (11,121) (335) (206) (659) - (14,949)
Disposals LE - (621) (34) - - - (655)

At 31 December 2016, net of accumulated R =E-A~E+-A=+-H"

depreciation BAREHNE 57,508 76,700 2,019 1,785 485 13,157 151,654
At 31 December 2016: WZE-"E+ZA=t+-8:

Cost 2 83,267 153,812 6,227 7,758 1,837 13,157 266,058

Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (25,759) (77,112 (4,208) (5,973) (1,352) - (114,404)

Net carrying amount REFE 57,508 76,700 2,019 1,785 485 13,157 151,654

At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated R=Z-a§—-A-H"

depreciation BB 2iTE 57,782 65,756 1582 1243 333 7,589 134,285
Addtions FE 252 1870 624 210 355 24,009 27,320
Transfer o 3,646 26,215 = = = (29,861) =
Depreciation provided during the year ERFROTE (2,678) (9,168) (649) ®) (203) = (12,709)
Disposals HE - (5,379) 9 (16) - - (5,404)
Disposal of subsidliaries LEHBAR (139) 2 (140) (74) (90) - (445)
At 31 December 2015, net of accumulated A =E-REF-A=+-8"

depreciation BB 2itiE 58,863 79,292 1408 1358 3% 1737 143,063
At 31 December 2015: RZE-RE+ZA=+-8:

Cost A 81994 145,283 5,281 7,125 1,088 1,787 242,508

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (23,131) (65,991) (3873 (5,767) (693) - (99,455)

Net carrying amount EEFE 58,863 79,292 1408 1358 3% 1737 143,063
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net RZBE—ARF+_A=+—8B AEEEEF
carrying amount of approximately RMB8,110,000 (2015: nil) were EXH A ARYS110,000t (ZE—AF : &)
pledged to secure letter of credit facilities granted to the Group by WETEFEFERF UE-—HRTEAE
a bank. BHEAZERE-
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FE{F LB EFHKIE
2016 2015
—E-AREF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B/EEmEE 30,150 30,964
Recognised during the year FABHER (814) 814)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—H/EEE 29,336 30,150
The Group’s land use rights are corresponding to the lands located REEW T ERES RURFBEMNRER
in Hangzhou and Nantong of the PRC and the remaining lease Mt R=ZT—"F+ZA=+—HB 8T
periods ranged from 10 to 50 years as at 31 December 2016. FHA D RN F10E50%F -
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s land use rights with R-ZE—XRNF+-A=+—B AEEEEF
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB4,321,000 (2015: BHEAREA321,000c (ZE—HF &)
nil) were pledged to secure letter of credit facilities granted to the METTHEAED TER UE—BRTR
Group by a bank. AEBRLEAZTRE -
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BLEE
Technical Sewage pipe
Software know-how  usage right Total
LA HtAE SARFEAE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:

At 1 January 2016, RZT—R"E—H—H"

net of accumulated amortisation Bk R # 49 3,763 2,583 6,395
Addition NE 123 - 510 633
Amortisation provided during the year FRROEH (125) (745) (196) (1,066)
At 31 December 2016, RZE—REF

net of accumulated amortisation +-B=1+—H"

Bk R H 47 3,018 2,897 5,962

At 31 December 2016: RZE-RE+ZA=+—8:

Cost B 373 7,274 4,024 11,671

Accumulated amortisation g (326) (4,256) (1,127 (5,709)

Net carrying amount REFE 47 3,018 2,897 5,962
At 1 January 2015, nZZ-h¥—-R—1"

net of accumulated amortisation BB REr 47 4,521 1,630 6,198
Addition NE 25 - 1,114 1,139
Amortisation provided during the year FRFRMEH 29) (758) (161) (942)
At 31 December 2015, RZZ-RFE+-_A=+-H"

net of accumulated amortisation Bk 25 #H 49 3,763 2,583 6,395
At 31 December 2015: RZE-RF+-A=+—8:

Cost B 250 7,274 3,514 11,038

Accumulated amortisation RErEH (201) (3,511) (931) (4.643)

Net carrying amount REFE 49 3,763 2,583 6,395
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B Ot SRR M
31 December 2016 —ZE—~&+=-A=+—H
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Raw materials Mk 28,581 14,107
Work in progress 1 8 2,401 1,123
Finished goods BUAK G 16,611 24,829
47,593 40,059
18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. ESEWRERERERE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBFT
Trade receivables H 5N IE 21,641 16,106
Bills receivables U E & 109,894 76,598
131,535 92,704
Impairment BIE (1,198) (1,198)
Net trade and bills receivables B ZRWFIEN RN ERFRE 130,337 91,506

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 3 months.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivable and
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. EZEWMAREREWERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RREPRRNE 5 RUGRIERER A ANRR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AT
2016 2015
—B-RF ZE—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Within 3 months 3MEAA 17,174 13,403
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 2,912 934
6 months to 1 year 6lEAE1F 104 502
1to 2 years 1524 253 69
2 to 3 years 2E3F - 150
Over 3 years BiA3F 1,198 1,048
21,641 16,106
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are ESRWFKBRERENEFHNAT
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
At beginning of year F 4 (1,198) (4,941)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EHERBAEEE (ME6) - =
Amount written off as uncollectible HiH A EEREIRN £ 58 - -
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B EREEE (M:E6) - 78
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMBAR (M) - 3,665
(1,198) (1,198)
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

18. EZRUREREWRREE (&)

I & (B 5 R A FAREREN B 5 B URRIER R

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not individually nor

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: BT
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTF T
Neither past due nor impaired I 4 460 HA SRl B 17,174 13,403
Less than 3 months past due B R A3(E A 2,912 934
3 months to 9 months past due B HASIE A = 9@ A 104 502
9 months to 21 months past due wmHoME A =211@ A 253 69
20,443 14,908

b 45 780 B ol 6l (B & B L RO B K B3 B P SR 48
REFHDBMEFHR-

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

The bills receivable were due within 6 months.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying value of the trade receivables.
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. AR - RERHEMEWTRIE N

RECEIVABLES AND TRUST LOAN REWZETER
RECEIVABLE
(a) Prepayments, deposits and other (a) BRARE ZReRHMEKKIE
receivables
2016 2015
S AY 3 —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFT
Prepayment to suppliers At FE P S TR TR kIR 8,655 5,330
Deposits and other receivables e & E AR FRTE 1,594 534
Prepaid expenses AR RX 165 379
Interest receivables JFE W7 B 69 3
Value-added tax recoverable AT U ] LB 294 101
Less: provision for impairment BB ERHE (95) (152)
10,682 6,195
The above balances are unsecured, interest-free and have LB AEEF 2EREBTER
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of BHlolzd RHMBRFIBEAREESREE
deposits and other receivables approximate to their fair NEEERE
values.
Movement of the provision for impairment of other HtERHIBERERENES DT

receivables is as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFT

At beginning of year F1 (152) (161)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B ORERE (HiE6) 57 9
At end of year FER (95) (152)
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND TRUST LOAN
RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

19. NI - B R EMERRRRIEN
REWETEER (F)

(@) Prepayments, deposits and other (a) BARE ZReRHMEKKIE
receivables (Continued) (&)
Impairment provision for other receivables is charged to HtERRIBERERBEREMHERR
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of Hibh 2 MW AROITHRAZ R 0R (K
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 6). 6) M EEERE Rk E —RY
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally TEER T e U B BB AR & B8 o
written off when there is no expectation of recovery of
additional cash.
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of RBEMRNZREERR BB K
the reporting period is the carrying value of prepayments, EH e REMERFENRETE:
deposits and other receivables.
(b) Trust loan receivable (b) EWREZEFLER
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Trust loan receivable JEUWZFEE R 50,000 -

Trust loan receivable represents a six-month trust loan
lending arrangement with a commercial bank with an interest
rate of 6.5% per annum. The trust loan receivable matured
and was received on 6 January 2017.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFEFFABENESRMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T
Asset management agreement, at fair value BEEEEWS RATE
(note 34) (PfI5E34) 173,852 30,448
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, Yongsheng BHE_ZE—R"EFRZE-—RAF+ZA=+—8H
Dyeing (as asset entrustor) entered into certain asset management IEEE KRR (EREEZFAN) HAEER
agreements with the corresponding asset managers, pursuant ETBRAFIVEEERHE B KERLE
to which Yongsheng Dyeing agreed to participate in the asset AEL2HZSEAERRECNEEEETE
management plans operated by these asset managers and to WHEEEBARRNETRPFARERE
deposit investments to the designated accounts maintained by EEEEFETIERERBTREGERLE
the asset managers. The asset management plans mainly invest FoRSeMBEER_TE—R"EFRZZT—1F
in inter-bank deposits and bonds. The financial assets at 31 TZA=T BRI RFIEEE  WRIIFHE
December 2016 and 2015 were classified as held for trading and RERAEBRETAIRAFEFABRNSR

were, upon initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial BE
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

The details of the investments at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are

set out below:

20. BAVPEFABRENESHEE

—~~

&)

Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount Agreement date year-end
RERH
BEEEA AEA REE HHAH AVE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
2016
—EB-RF
LJZ Wealth Management China Merchant Bank 30,000 20 September 2016 30,437
(Shanghai) Co., Limited Co., Limited, Shanghai Branch
(“LJZ Wealth Management”) (“CMB Shanghai Branch”)
EREMEEE (L8)ARAE BARTROBRAA —E-RFAAZTH
([EREFEEE]) FEa17 (IBERT L8]
China Foreign Shanghai Pudong 20,000 20 September 2016 20,356
Economy and Trade Trust Development Bank
Co., Limited Beijing Chang Anijie Branch
FEEIMEBE HIERT FPERRERRIT —E-RFAAZTH
ERAA iR BIRAF
ERERREXIT
LJZ Wealth Management CMB Shanghai Branch 20,000 16 August 2016 20,402
BERENEER BERT LG ZE-RFENATRH
Shenzhen Sidaoke Investment Ping An Bank Co., 65,000 12 July 2016 66,715
Limited Limited, Shenzhen Branch
(“SZ Sidaoke Investment”) (“Ping An Bank
Shenzhen Branch”)
AT BBRHRERR DA FRE|TROBRIRDRINAT —Z-RE+HA+=H
(CRINTRERRE]) ([P RITRI)
LJZ Wealth Management CMB Shanghai Branch 15,000 11 July 2016 15,387
BERENEER BRERT LG —E2—RFtLAT—H
SZ Sidaoke Investment Ping An Bank Shenzhen Branch 20,000 4 July 2016 20,555
RN BERHEE FRITARIYI —E-RFLAMAE
173,852
2015
—E-HF
Shanghai International Trust China Construction Bank 30,000 12 August 2015 30,448
Co., Limited Corporation Limited,
Shanghai 4th Branch
FERRERAERAT B R IR AT AR () —Z-a¥N\RA+=H
BRAR EEEMXIT
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—XRE+-_A=+—H

m.ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%uﬁaﬁﬁﬁ

PLEDGED DEPOSITS FN
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —T—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH % 67,362 139,487
Pledged deposits EEBFER 1,705 5,133
69,067 144,620

Less: Pledged as collateral B B RE AR

for issuance of letters of credit FITERAERSR (1,705) (5,133)
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEYD 67,362 139,487

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB were RMB25,244,000 (2015:
RMB134,454,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between 1 to 2 months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposits rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

REXR AEBEUARBFENRS RIBTE
A ANRHE25244,000C (ZE—HF: AR
#5134,454,0007T) - ARBTEER LI AE
fth EHE o ST - ARIE AR BIKRE OMNEEEIEH])
R(tE SERNESERT)  AEEELE
BRERBERTHBAREAEMEBII#ETT
HNEE ZE 75 o

RITBSLREBRITERMNE - LUFBF =
MEBAMS -EHERFRFHRT— RIEE
BAFREEFRME N F—EMBEATE
I 42 18 B 52 B TE B 7 RN R BRER A B, - SR1T 445
BRERRNEERFEIPIBEELBLHNOR
e
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 2 ESENFRERESERE
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the REXR BZEMNRERENRERERER
year, based on the invoice date, is as follows: R BRE DT AT
2016 2015
A S —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARFT
Within 6 months 61E AR 90,760 66,708
6 months to 1 year e ENES 1,321 108
1 year to 2 years 1FE2F 686 276
2 years to 3 years 2F £3F - -
More than 3 years B A3F - =
92,767 67,092
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally B REMNFIEAR B RIEFENGCOR MR AE
settled on 60-day terms. B
23. OTHER PAYABLES, ADVANCES FROM 23. HhENRIE - ERFBRKEFTTR
CUSTOMERS AND ACCRUALS b= |
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFT
Advances from customers BE#® 16,049 6,642
Accrued payroll JEET T & 20,066 20,191
Accruals FEETFIE 1,842 1,429
Value-added and other taxes payable FERHIE BT R E A 6,446 6,585
Payables for purchase of property, BEWE BER&EN
plant and equipment BT RIE 4,802 2,964
Others Eith 1,740 2,243
50,945 40,054
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term HEMENRIBEATTERFHFHAE=@EA -

of three months.
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24. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 24. BT EBY
2016 2015
—E-AREF —FE—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBET T
Government grants AT & B 14,960 14,607
Less: current portion R BVERER (1,225) (1,100)
13,735 13,507
Movements in government grants are as follows: BT EBEFHMOT
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
At the beginning of the year F9) 14,607 13,132
Grants received during the year FRERE B 2,349 4,386
Amortised as income (Note 5) BRI (FiEE5) (1,996) 2,911)
At the end of the year FR 14,960 14,607
The grants were related to the subsidies received from local ZE AR EE TR F M E BT #
government authorities for the purpose of compensation for PAESHHIER W ABRTERAR 25
expenditure on certain facilities and were credited to a deferred BPREREERREAFHBEREERT -
income account. The grants were released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
The Group also received certain financial subsidies from local ZNER B I 5 Hh IR T A R M 1S 5 T B I B A
government authorities to support local business. There were no A E TS o R F U & BY I ARl ARIE R Y
unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies relating to these 1R R E A SR EIE - ZF BN & R EEFR T

government grants. These government grants were recognised in B HER-
profit or loss when received.
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 25 EEBEEE &F
Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without BEMSMEERBEZS (KRG RIKER
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same — BB EDEERAMAER) AT

tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

The movements in deferred tax assets: RERIBEENE
Write down of
inventories
to their net Provision for
realisable  Government impairment of
value grants Accruals  receivables  Tax losses Total
FEMAZE FEWRE
HU#RRE BRFER JEstR0R AERE HEER @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT ARMTRT ARETR ARETT AR%TR

At1 January 2015 RZZE-1%-A—-H 656 3,250 5,636 1,030 1,759 12,331
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRRERTROEERE

during the year 25 (1,059 (1,699) 8 1,197 (1,247
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (615) - (712) 916) (2.829) (5,072

At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE-RE+=A=1+-H

k=E-~"%-A-H 266 2,191 3,225 203 127 6,012
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRRERFANEERE
during the year (87) 53 101 9 147 205
At 31 December 2016 R-E-~¥+-A=t-AH 179 2,244 3,326 194 274 6,217
Deferred income tax is recognised for tax losses carried forward to EEAREEBRRERD ANSIBABRBE
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the Fla= Mg En R IEEERRELRS
future taxable profit is probable. o
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 25, EERIEBEEE, B& (&)
(CONTINUED)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: EEFIE A EREEH M T

Unrealised Unrealised

interest fair value  Withholding
income  adjustment tax Total
RER RER
FESHA ATLESRER bk @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT  ARETR ARETR ARET:R

At1 January 2015 R-E-HE—A-H 6) - (3.910) 3,915)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to FERRER (HR),/
profit or loss during the year FTAREERIE 5 (67) (3,341) (3,403)

At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016~ R=ZE—RF+-A=+—HK

“E-RE-A-H - (67) (7,251) (7,318)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ERNEEGNK),/
profit or loss during the year FTARERERIE (10) (511) (1,434) (1,955)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"E+=ZRA=+—H (10) (578) (8,685) (9,273)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ABABEINR ETEERBEBEERAGBERE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial HEEARRRPEE - U T ARERNELER
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of TBESMIMEREENFRESHT:
the Group for financial reporting purposes:
2016 2015
—B-RF —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the R a Ot kR R R
consolidated statement of financial position BT IBEEFR 441 795

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the & BT T MR R FE R A
consolidated statement of financial position BT IBAEFRE (3,497) (2,101)
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. [ 2
Shares iz 12
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Issued and fully paid BEITRER
400,000,000 (2015: 400,000,000) 400,000,000/% (ZZE— R 4F:
ordinary shares 400,000,0000% ) & 18 % 3,165 3,165
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as AKRARBRAEHBERAMENT :
follows:
Number of
shares Share
inissue capital Total
BRI
RHSE BE  ROBER @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%F—HF—H 400,000,000 3,165 238,677
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company RIZA AR 3 (4R & - - (19,182)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016~ R=Z—RF+-A=+—HLk
S e = 400,000,000 3,165 219,495
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company RIZA AR 3 (4R & - - (20,471)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-R"E+A=+—H 400,000,000 3,165 199,024
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company'’s directors and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 7 November 2013.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme is limited to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on 27 November 2013, the day since which the Company’s shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period of no shorter than 12 months and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the
par value of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—XRE+-_A=+—H

27. IBIRHESTE

ARREE—RBRESE ([%HE]) 8
ERHAEESERNELHEMNEER2HA
ERUEHLE®R - ZAEANAER2EER
BRARRNEERAEBHEMES - ZAER
“E-=FT-AEHEAER

W

RIBZFT BB EERDNRITREBRERS
A RETERBFEASR AR RREME
BE#TRMNMB0% - BHABR2EERE
ZETBIERNEBREMA TERITHRND &S

B TABBARRRNR -_E—=F+—A#
—t+EREREBMARIMERAR LT ZA
MAREZEITHRM10% °

BRYPEENFEITHRAB MR EALE Y IE
WMITESBAHE I RERTZ@AH
B W FARREERERBUIENITES
B 18 T A B B8 A BT (] BE AR AR B 3L AN R B AE
AR E 1T IO 90.1% 5 2 E (IRIEAR R F]
AR R B BBV E & 5T & ) #8i85,000,000%
T BERERREAS EE A

RHEBRENZHATREHEHAESALRA
HAARAXNRERES KB TR TUE
Mo MROBRENTERAESFEE I
RALR12E AN SEEIMRAS R TEREK
BEHARERER T FTH-

BERETEEISERTISEENRSE ()
TREBRRHE 2 40 B B 12 RIAR 1) B X P ) M T
B (BEZHEBILERSBRRARRNG
R AT H) T E - R (i EE -

BREYEETRHAEAZAREINBERK
R -

8
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 6 January 2015, 15,000,000 share options were granted to 39
employees with vesting dates falling from 2 April 2016 to 5 January
2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.48 per share. The expiration
date of the options granted was 10 years after the grant date.

On 30 December 2015, 16,300,000 share options were granted
to 45 employees with vesting dates falling from 1 April 2017 to 30
December 2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.52 per share. The
expiration date of the options granted was 10 years after the grant
date.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme

27. BBREETE (&)

R_ZE—AF—AXB 390REECER
15,000,000 B #E - BB EHBN T =T —<
FNA-_HAE-_ZE-_RAF—AAHRKEITEEA
1488 - ERHERENRESA ARE
HEAE o

MN_E—RF+_A=+H 45%REECHERK
16,300,000 B #E - FEHBN T =22 —+
FNA—HE-Z-_RAF+-A=+HK&{TE
BhEBR1ETT CEIBRENTSHB A
REBHETF-

FRN - ZETEIET AT B M ARITRE -

during the year:
2016 2015
“E-RE —Z-1fF

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

mE¥H AT
THE BREHE e EREHA
HKD ’000 HKD ‘000

per share per share
=1 T4 BRETT T3
At 1 January ®—HA—H 1.503 29,000 = =
Granted during the year FAKL - - 1,501 31,300
Lapsed during the year FEREH 1.503 (2,382) 1.480 (2,300)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1.503 26,618 1.503 29,000

No share options were exercised during the year of 2016. As at 31
December 2016, the exercisable share options were 5,809,000
(2015: nil).
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 27. BRESTE (&)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EBRR  WRITEBRENITEERITE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BRGNS
2016 ZE-RF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TREE* 1THEH
‘000 HKD
per share
F17 BB T
5,809 1.48 2 ApriI 2016 to 5 January 2025
—ANFHNA-—HE-_ZE-_RAF—AAH
5,809 1.48 1 Apr|| 2017 to 5 January 2025
—E—+tFMA—HE-ZE-_RAF—AAA
7,500 1.562 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025
—E—+tHFMA-ZBE=_Z-_RF+=A=1+H
7,500 1.52 1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025

—E-\FOA-HE_Z-_AF+-HA=+H

26,618
2015 —E_FE&E
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE> TEH
‘000 HKD
per share
T SRET
6,350 1.48 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025
—E—RNFUAZBE-_ZE_AF—AHAH
6,350 1.48 1 April 2017 to 5 January 2025
—E—+tFMNA—HEZ-ZE-RAF—AAA
8,150 1.62 2 Apr|| 2017 to 30 December 2025
—+tFEMNAZHE=ZE A5 +=-A=+H
8,150 1.52 1 Aprll 2018 to 30 December 2025
—\FMA—HBE_E-_RAF+=-A=+H
29,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment & B R 077 165 {25 ] R P AL R ok i . 52
in the case of rights or dividend issues, or other similar changes S 2 B B 7 AR L84 B 77 L/{Eﬂ
in the Company’s share capital. Ko
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted were RMB8,556,000 for
15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015 (RMB0.57
each) and RMB10,669,000 for 16,300,000 share options granted
on 30 December 2015 (RMBO0.65 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of RMB7,825,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB4,189,000).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015:

27. BBREETE (&)

ERLMNERENATFTER - —HF—
A 75 B % H /915,000,000 B A& AR
8,556,000t (B ARKOS7TT) R =ZF
—HAF+= A=+ 8 %TM16,300,00017 &
A4 A AR #10,669,0007T & (B AR
0.6570) HAAEBERBEZE-T—RE+=
A=+ HLFEERERERIARE
7,825,000 (— T — R F: AR ¥4,189,000
TT) °

FAMRL R EEERRENR L B RE

P ) 35t A6 SR IR IR AE 1R 2 R — TR VIR AL T
HERFE TRIIGAAEL AR

R-ZZTE—RF— A/NBETA15,000,00015 i

R -
Dividend yield (%) P& B (%) =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 43.78
Risk-free interest rate (%) [ Bez 1) = (%) 1.752
Expected life of options (year) AR ERTEHAERR (F) 10
Share price (HK$ per share) RE (ZRBT) 1.46

16,300,000 share options granted on 30 December 2015:

R-ZE—RF+-A=+HELH16,300,000

19 B8 R HE
Dividend yield (%) 1% B 2 (%) =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 52.30
Risk-free interest rate (%) 47 352 1) 2 (%) 1.57
Expected life of options (year) AR ERTEHAERR (F) 10
Share price (HK$ per share) RE (ZRBT) 1.62

The expected life of the options was the contractual life of the
options. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

1 62 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2016

BRENBEHFRABRENASOFR -AH
RIERRELKBARRBEHEENRE
ARBET—EREBRER-



27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 26,618,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 26,618,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of approximately RMB238,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 26,618,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 6.65% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 90 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with a functional currency other than
RMB.

27.

28.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —ZT—XRE+-A=+—H

BRESE (&)

A TE SR o 3 A R AR A EL
e

RBEEHR A2 R&EZFEEBETE
26,618,00017 18 A 17 {5 fE AR 8 - R BB AR A B3]
B OB AN 2R - AR BT T 0 W R 1T (50 A S AR A ]
BB HNEE1T26,618,0000% A A 7 @R &
FEOMNR R #) A R #238,0007T (1% 3175 X
A o

7

R EZERERERBE AR REZFET
£26,618,00017 M ARTTEERE  HER AR
A% B B 3T 1D #16.65% ©

(G

AEERERAFERBEFENSEREE
BRMBERRFEVANESHEZEHRZS -

BRE (hEARKMBERBE) - NEBET
MEBARERAEARE BRRABTEA
RAME & 52 RIFTEETE 2 AL E10%BR B & 4
NEERBEERHEHE BEEEHBRBED
HEXBaMEANS0% - EET (PEARK
MBRRLE) BIMETRHEBRAT 20k
TE 2 R 1 1 P R B R DASE AR - BT BB AR
EROBBETEIREMEARN25% °

SNEIE R B RRREDREE S AREIASN
MEBHBERREENELZE -
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 20 MEERFERERNIEZEMR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING ==/
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- REBEBRBEAEZER BB A RFEEH
controlling interests are set out below: a0
2016 2015
——5% —2—5%F
Percentage of equity interest held by non- EERERTEN
controlling interests: &R DL :
Hangzhou Fiber AR 30% 30%
Nantong Fiber A B e 8% 8%
Yongsheng 3D Printing KB = HEFT ) 40% 40%
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —T—AfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to BT IEIERER Y
non-controlling interests: FRmEF (FE) -
Hangzhou Fiber F AL 7,410 6,641
Nantong Fiber gk 2,107 1,341
Yongsheng 3D Printing KEE = HEFTED (74) (56)
Dividends paid to non-controlling DAL« 10!
interests of Hangzhou Fiber FEIE R R AR B 3,600 3,600
Dividends paid to non-controliing MR
interests of Nantong Fiber FEVERR R AT AR B 720 =
Capital injection from non-controlling TN e SRR AR A 2 B
interests of Hangzhou Fiber 5,400 -
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RS A B
interests at the reporting date: FEVERR R RAT 4524
Hangzhou Fiber b 48 39,944 30,734
Nantong Fiber ik g 5,331 3,944
Yongsheng 3D Printing KB = HEFTED 3,870 3,944
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 20, HEEKRFEERESZNIEDZEM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BAw (&)
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any
inter-company eliminations:

TRHALIIHERROMBERE - PR
BeRAMBREMARMESEEER

Hangzhou Yongsheng
2016 Fiber Nantong Fiber 3D Printing
—E-RE HMN{L & ek ¥ KEE=ITED
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR TR AR TR
Revenue Wz 215,440 201,523 354
Total expenses BHEY (190,740) (175,097) (538)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHEF (BE) 24,700 26,426 (184)
Total comprehensive income FREEBALE
for the year 24,700 26,426 (184)
Current assets MBEE 136,987 81,529 8,910
Non-current assets FERBEE 36,502 71,902 1,423
Current liabilities REAE (35,019) (83,164) (657)
Non-current liabilities EnER=N (5,301) (3,478) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEFEBME/ (FR)
operating activities ReneFE 207 21,211 (530)
Net cash flows used in investing activities & ZEFTREEREFHE (4,056) (12,180) (1,278)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEFEHAE (FA)
financing activities BeRnEFHE 6,000 (9,000) —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBELSEDEN,/
cash equivalents (R4 F8 2,151 31 (1,808)
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

20. EEEARFERESZNIFZEM
BLow (&)

INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Hangzhou Yongsheng
2015 Fiber Nantong Fiber 3D Printing
—T-8F TN b [FIREE KBS = HEFTED
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue e 160,132 154,136 88
Total expenses MY (137,994) (137,314) (228)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRF, (EE) 22,138 16,822 (140)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBARE
for the year 22,138 16,822 (140)
Current assets MEE E 104,627 53,752 9,803
Non-current assets FRBEE 35,092 66,587 122
Current liabilities REAE (32,787) (68,689) (65)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (4,481) (2,288) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BETEEME/ (FTR)
operating activities BEenEFE 6,959 (6,847) (1,096)
Net cash flows used in investing activities X & ZEFIRE SR EFHE (3,200) (23,312) 62)
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ BIEEHFIEHE &R EFHE - = 3,000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRReSAEDEM/
cash equivalents OR ) F88 3,759 (30,159) 1,842
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30. KEHERH
EREBEA

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating AEERBE2HECHBEREETHAE
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms M KipEg UEHERAN T —EMET
ranging from one to two years. Fo

RZB-—RETZA=+—0B ETEEREDT
AR E LM ER AT FRIEN RRRER

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows: SREWT
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARMEF T
Within one year —F R 28 411

In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFE_FRERF
(BRIEEEME) 6 19
34 430
31. COMMITMENTS 31. &E

B £ XM EESOPTRE L AL 2 M E ASESN R
SHH NREBHERAZMNT

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 30
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the
reporting date:

2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR F T
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAB R B
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 48,424 3,860
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. BELXRFZ R

BALANCES
(@) Name and relationship (a) BBREHE
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
BELER BEAREERER
Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
MMKEREEFRA A F 128 IR S PR 2 o
Fuyang Jingshang Agriculture Development Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
Company Limited
KEEGHREERREREERAA B 28 AR AR R 2 A
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
Trading Company Limited
MM L KEHINEZERRD 128 IR IS PR 2 o
Hangzhou Yongsheng Holdlngs L|m|ted Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
TN K B ZERR B BR 2 B 28 AR AR R 2 A
HUVIS Corporation and its subsidiaries Joint venture partner and its subsidiaries
R A HUVIS R ELF B A A BELEBHEEMBAR
Hangzhou Shining 3D Tech Co., Limited Joint venture partner
MM EBR =R ERNDERAF BEPEEH
(b) Related party transactions b) BERFRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed B? I EMBRRAMITOMBEENRS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the & ﬁ%ﬁ?\\ AEBEBFEASETAT
following material transactions with related parties: BEARXS
2016 2015
2 A —E-HF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®T T ARBTFT
1) Purchases of goods 1) KEES® [0}
—HUVIS Corporation and — A EHHUVIS K
its subsidiaries HH B AR 62,719 35,358
— Fuyang Jingshang — KB = 5 87
Agriculture FRER M
Development BRAA]
Company Limited 53 117
62,772 35,475
2)  Sales of goods 2) HEEM® (i
- Hangzhou Shining 3D — e =R
Tech Co., Limited B3 ER A 202 83
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. BELXRFZ R (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued) b) BELIXRS (&)
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—hfF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5T AR¥T R ARBTT

3) Loangrantedtoarelated 3) M—RBEFRLEER (iii

party
— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — MR L K BR T A
Yongsheng Foreign ZE5HE AR
Trading Company
Limited - 48,088
4)  Interest income 4)  FBUA (i)
— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — RN R L K 8% T A
Yongsheng Foreign 1 NG|
Trading Company
Limited 1,474 621

mEAER W EEFER (iv)

5)  Storage fee received from 5
related parties

— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — R BB L Kk BR T A
Yongsheng Foreign B S5 ER AR
Trading Company
Limited 89 27
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — UM oK B AR
Holdings Limited BRAA - 12
89 39
6)  Agency service fee 6) M—REESWER )
received from a related RERBE
party
— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — R BB L oK 8% T A
Yongsheng Foreign B AR AR
Trading Company
Limited 12 -
12 -
7)  Purchases of property, 7y BEYWE BER&E (vi)
plant and equipment
— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — WU INER L oK Bk A
Yongsheng Foreign ES5ER AR
Trading Company
Limited - 39
- 39
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

8)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

v)

(vi)

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 5 May 2015, the Group entered into agreements
with a related party, Hangzhou Yongsheng Group
Limited, to dispose the entire equity investment in
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign Trading
Company Limited, and entered into agreements with
the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Li Cheng, to dispose
of the entire equity investment in Yongsheng (HK)
International Co., Limited (the “Disposal Group”). The
disposal of the Disposal Group was completed on 11
August 2015.

The purchases of goods were made according to the
published prices and conditions similar to those offered to
the major customers of the suppliers.

The sales to the related party were made according to
the published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

The loan granted to Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng
Foreign Trading Company Limited bore interest at 3.1%
per annum before 31 December 2015 and 6.5% per
annum after 1 January 2016, and matured on 30 June
2016.

The storage fee received from related parties was
charged at prices similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

The agency service fee received from a related party
was charged at prices similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

The purchases of property, plant and equipment were
made at prices similar to those offered to other customers
of the Group.
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32. BEARB K&k ()

(b) BELZXRZ (&)

8)

W i :

(i

(iii

(iv)

(Vi)

R-ZE-HRFLALR AEEHE
—BHESTMNKEEEERAR
EIRVAE k=t WA IR 22 280
BEBERDBNEZEHRERE A
Ko BR YRR IR R 2R B SE AL RT ML 15 A%
HEXE (FB)BERERAAN
EHBRERE(HESRE]) -4
EEEMNEHEER_T—HFN\A
T—HxEK-

REEmZERTHERNEE
EPRENAFRERMIEET-

B 7 1 8 T AR 4 T A R
FERFIIE QMBI GELE
7

mATIN B LK R EONE BB R A
BEMEFR-_TE—AF+=A
=+ —HAEFENERIAEFE R
—T-RF-H—-H]&R/65E A
BEFR _ZE-—REXA=1TRHE
Ho

ARE T W T &R EEHR T
AREBHEMEPHERBES -

A — % B & 77 WX O (RO iR 755 2 £
RETASEEMBEFHNERM
=

BEME BELRREHRERHK
FTAEBEEMEFPHE ZEBRE

7o
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. BELXRFZ K& (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EERBAEF W REELEER
Disclosures pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong RIEEFBE CRRHERD $£383(1)(d) Kk &
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (AR (BRBEEZEEZMNHER) BN £3
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) HHEEMNERDT

Regulation are as follows:

Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At  outstanding 2015 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2016 the year 2016 the year 2015
R-B-1F
+=A
RZB-RE =+-8k

t=A ERRE ZB-AF FARR R-F-0F
=t-8 AEELE -A-R KREERE —A-H
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR AREBTR ARETL ARETR

Due from related parties MR E S R

—Hangzhou Shining 3D Tech Co., Limited ~ — i Rl = R R

BRAA 3,002 3,002 2,800 2,800 -
—Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng ~MMEILXEENE S
Foreign Trading Company Limited BRAR
(controlled by Mr. Li Cheng) (AZHEEEH) - 48,088 48,088 48,088 =
3,002 50,388 -
The amount due from Hangzhou Shining 3D Tech Co., JE WAL 5 B = #E R AR (9 B IR A A1 5K
Limited is non-interest-bearing and was no fixed terms HARHERERTERB -RMMMNE
of repayment. The loan granted to Hangzhou Xiaoshan UK BEEHINE ZER AT RLHERR
Yongsheng Foreign Trading Company Limited bore interest ZE-RFF+Z A=+ —HAREMNX
at 3.1% per annum before 31 December 2015 and 6.5% SI1BFB R-ZE—XR"F—A—HEA
per annum after 1 January 2016, and matured on 30 June 65E BHERRZ_ZE—A"F A=
2016. HEIH-
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. BELXRFZ KRR (&)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) ERBAES W REZESEER (FE)
(Continued)
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At  outstanding 2015 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2016 the year 2016 the year 2015
R-B-1F
+=A
RZB-R§ =t-HR
+=A EREE —B-AE FRGE W-FT-1F
=t-0 AEELHE —B—B AHEELE —F-A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%Tn ARETR AREBTT ARETR
Due to a related party B —&EER A
—HUVIS Corporation and its subsidiaries — A BHHWISK
NG| 2,375 62,719 - 35,358 -
2,375 - -
(d) Compensation of key management (d XEEEXTEEE ASNHRHN
personnel of the Group
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #7432 86 & B #1487 1,739 2,237
Performance related bonuses BB RIEAL 1,999 1,489
Pension scheme contributions RN ETEIHER 138 43
Equity-settled share option arrangements P& 4% & B2 A% 4 22 BF 2,201 1,007
Total compensation paid to key REEEEAB TR BIREN
management personnel 6,077 4,776
The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts EREBNERREHNERREH
recognised as an expense during the reporting period FTEEBABMNRE

related to key management personnel.
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BRI
31 December 2016 —ZT—"F+=-_HA=+—H
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. EEEH
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings, land use RZEB—AF+ZA=+—RH FrEEETE
rights and bank deposits were pledged to a bank relating to the FIFEAERRITERERAEBERS
letter of credit facilities granted to the Group. Details are included EREMEER T —BRIT -FBIRENRE
in notes 14, 15 and 21, respectively, to the consolidated financial PRI KR M 7E14 ~ 15%21 ©
statements.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. ZEHESHNEMIE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHRR SEERNITANKREERT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2016 —E—Xxf
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value
Loans and through profit
receivables or loss Total
BAYE
BERK STABEH
FE R IE CHEE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR TR AR% TR
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{E&F ABm A
profit or loss TREE - 173,852 173,852
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W IE R RN EE 130,337 - 130,337
Trust loan receivable EKRZTER 50,000 - 50,000
Financial assets included in FTATERRIE ke REAM
prepayments, deposits and EUGRIENEMEE
other receivables 1,568 - 1,568
Amounts due from related parties UK B 58 5 3R IR 3,002 - 3,002
Pledged deposits BT R 1,705 - 1,705
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EFEY 67,362 - 67,362
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R
+=-A= 253,974 173,852 427,826
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

34. REHESTHEHMTA (F)

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE R AT ERH
sHmaes
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
Trade and bills payables B S RN FIERENEE 92,767
Amounts due to a related party e — R BEE 5 R 2,375
Financial liabilities included FFAEMENRIERENFIEN SR EE
in other payables and accruals 8,384
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+A=+—H 103,526
2015 TR
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
Loans and through profit
receivables or loss Total
b YN
9% FTABZER
e A CREE “BEr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBEF T AREFIT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through 1 A F{ET ABZFH
profit or loss TREE = 30,448 30,448
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REWGRIE K W R & 91,506 - 91,506
Financial assets included in SFABNRE -ZER
prepayments, deposits and Eh FE W R IE B
other receivables TREE 385 = 385
Amounts due from related parties e B E 5 BUE 50,888 - 50,888
Pledged deposits EHEMFR 5,133 - 5,133
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY 139,487 = 139,487
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF
+-A=+—H” 287,399 30,448 317,847
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. REREINEHMIA (&)

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

TEEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

1R SRS BR Y

cRaE

RMB’000

ARBTT

Trade and bills payables B S ENFIERENEE 67,092
Financial liabilities included in FTAEMENRIEREAFIEN /A E

other payables and accruals 6,636

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—AFE+-A=+—H 73,728

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB 77,153,000 (2015: RMB 48,484,000)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. As at 31
December 2016, no trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills
during the year have been recourse by the suppliers.

THEENER

VYEZEARIBEANCEZSHEE

R_E—RNE+_F=+—H A&£E@HAE
AETHEBSECETEAENZHBITE
MHETREREE (IEBSERKE])  ERAEE
BAR®ET7,153,000 (ZE—HF: ARE
48,484,0007T) ' A& BN ZSHEBHE
FENFEBE([ZBEE]) EERE T5E
EREBERTDER KOG BIEEEZEE
EERBEMEARRE St HEETEERE
EEZENEEEREBCEEENE S EN
RE-RZBER AEETERBFERES
EZENEMEN BERETANEME=F
HE EEIERESERE-R_T—XF
+TZA=+—H FHAHERHNEEREES
SHRFAMEEMNE SEMNFIE -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”)
to some of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due
to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB
92,472,000 (2015:RMB 55,572,000). The Derecognised Bills
had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills
is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group
did not recognise any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the years or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the years.
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4. RERESHEHMTA (F)

EXERUBEINCBRETHMEE

RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—H FAEERHEE
THEFSECEFTRAEZHRITEMANE
TFREER ([BERIEEREE]) - UEELER
ZEHERARAASEAARKI2,472,000
T (ZE—RF: ARUS55,572,0007L) MBS
JERNFEBE - RBREAR ERLEEREENE
HERA—Z=EA -RE (PEARKFE
ZRE) WP EMBITEL  AIEKRILEER
ZEMNRBAEAHASEEBERRBE([HER
EﬁiJ) BEERE Zli‘ilaﬁﬁfﬁféaa 1T
REFEMBRBOER KEIHR Bt HE &K
MﬁwaﬂﬂﬁwmﬁmﬁEé%ﬁ%ﬁﬁn THHY
HERME AEERFELHAD K IHRARE
BERBOZIFERIEERERORTRESR
EfEYNEaEERR HEREKREE-
EERE AEEFELHDKRIEBRAEZRDN

NEETTREK-

BE_ZT-—RFR-ZET-—AFt+t_A=t+—H
EEF'ZIKEIIEEEWE%KEER?%F%L
& EHN AR ESEER - RAFERRFM
FOMERIFELENKEXNER - RNERE
FERERELEE-
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, an amount
due to a related party, and amounts due from related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the CFO and the board of directors. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the CFO.

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
require the directors to make estimates about the expected future
cash flows from future proceeds when the investments mature
and the fair values have been estimated to be the principle plus
estimated interest income. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the
most appropriate values at the end of reporting period.

For the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, management has estimated the potential effect of using
reasonably possible alternatives as inputs of estimated return rate
and has quantified this as a reduction in fair value of approximately
RMB1,376,000, using less favourable assumptions, and an
increase in fair value of approximately RMB1,376,000 using more
favourable assumptions.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

35 TRMTANAFERAFERER

REEEFNH RehBAeEEY CSEFF
PoBHRUGENRERER ROFEFA
BENEREE EHRNRARENER.
FAAEMRE R REMEKRFRIENEHE
B R E REMEYGOR - 5T A E A R R
REFENSREE FARRITEEME
E EN—RRESREREKEE RIEN
APEREREAERE TBRAZZEIA
BRI BB

MU BEERMTENAREM BB EEE
ERTANQXTEAENERERIEF -HHL
BEERYBREREESER RERSH
0 MBS oMen TAEENEH U ETRE
ARGBENERHABE %G EHMFAE
Ay RER -

BRAHEFABRSNEREEN A FEEARE
ENREIHREBREEAFERAS MG
FMBIRAR  HREAEHRENRARKR S
MEFHGET -EFERA FEARHTBIR
ROGHRATFE (R ABRNERAFES
P)BEAE YASHEHRRRENEE

REAFEFABSHNECREENS TEE
EAFTHAAENEER A REAG LR
R ABRENEBEERYE TEBEETYEH
2tABRAFERDHARE1,376,0007T (fix
FASETHNBR)RAFELMOARE
1,376,000t (fiwfE AR B FIM )

AEFRAERAT 2016 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 35.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is the significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2016:

Significant
unobservable input Input

EXRTUHERAHE BWARE

%EIE%Q$E&Q$EE&
IIE

TXRERAFEFABENEREEMET
MBATAIERBARE BRN_-_Z—RF
TZA=+—"BMEEHXED:

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

DTPEHBARBNHRE

Financial assets at fair value Estimated return rate 5.6%
through profit or loss fHstE R =

BRAFEFABRE
TREE

2% increase (decrease) in estimated
return rate would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value by
RMB1,376,000
EETEHRE A (TE)2%EEH L
FEE M OR D) AR¥E1,376,000
7T

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2016

DNFEER

TRIPAEHLRIANATEIBER:

ERAFEFENEE:
R-ZE—-X"E+=ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHBER

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EREHS TEEN FUBEH

BEHRE EXBABE ERAARE
(%-8) (%F=R) (F=R) -
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARE®TR AR%®TR AR%T:R

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: A FEF ABHNEREE
Asset management agreement EEEEHE

- - 173,852 173,852
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 3. TR TEAENAFERLAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEER (&)
As at 31 December 2015 R_T—HEF+-_HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
ATEFERR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEETS ABRE TAERH
DEHRE EEHAZE ZZHAEE
(F—#) (B=H) (F=8) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETT ARETR
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABRNEREE

profit or loss:

Asset management agreement BEEEHE - - 30,448 30,448
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FA cMEERSREEEF —RNE=_R
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 ATEEABLEATFEFEEE ME=R
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2015: Ni). MEEREASEL (ZZ—hF &)
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair RZZE—RERZFE—RF+ZA=+—8"
value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. REEHFEEAAQRTFEAENEREE:
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. TRiEEEREBBERBER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below.

AEENT2ERTABRRASREMER -
ZELTRMIANTIZENABEERAEELE
FREZ AEEEEZEAMEMEENE
B IR EMEREENE S RYEGRARE
i & W 3R IR DA K B 5 < 3R TR % EL At B N 3R
b=

AEBEAEINERR ERARRERBDESRE
- AEENEREEEEEZSARNERE
BR-BEFgRANTREEESEZSZRARD
BUER > WS XAt -

KEFIM R ARAR 2016F 3
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 2% (2015: 5%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the operating units making the sale,
whilst approximately 3% (2015: 7%) of costs were denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

36. cRIEMBEEEERBR ()

S LB

AEEEHRHERAR - LERARAKES
MAEEEE NI NERETHEREER
EL - AERBEMEHEET 2% (T —0%F:
5% ) AETTHE K2 EM NI EEIASN
MEBE BSIBFLBR (ZE—HF:7%)
MR A BRI T RE E B AN B SHE

TRETNBEHRMERMEERTFTTIER
BRAT AEERBMNEN (HEKEERA
BRRAFESB B HEZNSIEREED
B SRR

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
ARMER RRBL AR R
EH (T #gm, Ghd)
RMB’000
ARBFT
2016 —TE—XE
If US$ weakens against RMB HETHRAREERE -10% 15
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETAAREAE +10% (15)
2015 —E—hfF
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHAREEE -10% 539
If US$ strengthens against RMB imETHAREHE +10% (539)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades mainly with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. For transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of senior management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged short-term deposits,
an equity investment at fair value through profit or loss, other
receivables and amounts due from related parties, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty and by
geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s
trade receivables are widely dispersed in different regions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to
the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group'’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans.

36. TRIEREEBE

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

=R BUR ()

ERAR

AEETRERMAEREENENE=TE
IR5 - ANEBENBRRIMEEBAEE G
REMEPHALBEREERER I 75
FEESREBUFIASR HRNALFAFTHLE
BUMDEEBEETHNRS AEETSER
REREEBRIZETREGEE:

rEBEMMeREE (BRASIREE
Y EERMERFR BAFEFABRNR
RERE B B U IR I R MR B i 05 SRR ) WY
ERRRRNEFIIEY SARBRESFNZ
ETAENREE:

MR AERRESHNEERAERIENE=H
Lﬁx%~mﬂﬁgﬁmwmo%¢¢%ﬂ%
MEE, HFSFRBWEEE -ANAEEE S
FEUWHENEFPER BN ES I AMTEE
REHEARR -

BRAASERE 5 RUKGRIRR SRR A E —
FECBIBENM RN E18IE -

REE < E

REEUREURDESRETAERESE
BRER LW TARAKEESRIAREREE
(B ZEWHKIA) IR IR EEL
WETRE-

AEEBBIRIT
2 ERFE o

FRIEA & 05 M1 REE

KEFIM R ARAR 2016F 3
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. TREMREEBEERBEE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at each RERERDH  REEZREQARFTEFIESE S
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, MemaENRBEEROT:
is as follows:
31 December 2016 —E-XF+=ZHA=+—H
Within 1 year
—FR
RMB’000
ARETR
Trade and bills payables B o5 RN ZRIERENER 92,767
Amounts due to a related party B — R BE R B 2,375
Financial liabilities included in AR M ENRIEREAFIEN /A E
other payables and accruals 8,384
103,526
31 December 2015 TR+ _-A=+—8H
Within 1 year
—FR
RMB’000
ARBFT
Trade and bills payables B RMNFERENRR 67,092
Financial liabilities included in FFAHMENRIBEREGRENSREE
other payables and accruals 6,636
73,728
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36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 6 January 2017, the entrusted loan in the amount of
RMB50,000,000 under the First Entrusted Loan Agreement
was repaid in full by China Merchants Bank Hangzhou Xiaoshan
Branch (“CMB Xiaoshan”) to Yongsheng Dyeing. On 9 January
2017, Yongsheng Dyeing entered into the second entrusted loan
agreement with CMB Xiaoshan, pursuant to which Yongsheng
Dyeing has entrusted CMB Xiaoshan with an amount of
RMB50,000,000 for the purpose of lending the same to an
independent third party, Saintyear Holding Co., Ltd. for a period
of six months. The interest rate of the entrusted loan is 6.5% per
annum and the loan period is six months.

36.

37.

B Ot SRR M EE
31 December 2016 —Z—RE+_-_A=+—H

TRIREREZEREZRRBER ()

EXER

AEEEANEENTIR BB RERAKEREA
RENENRRFRENVEEFS RBRNE
AR AR HEEBRERERRMERK
fee

AKERBEERROR (K ERRAARE
LR AR AR AREEAREE AKE
TeBBRN TRRABE  ARFREEA
SLRATHRL o A 8 B B E 5 RS0
MARER -BE-T—AE+-A=+—H
K-E-RE+-AS+—AILFE EBE
AR B IR R AR S B o

BERREE

MN-ZE—tE—AXNB BEBITMMNEL
A (TBEETEL]) AXREEBHE
EENAEERMEZETHIEERARE
50,000,000t R T —+F— AN B KB
AEERERTEBLUI YIS _HEEERD
B KB REE 8§ A R ¥50,000,0007T
RAETHREBTEL WEZRBETEBLE
ZHZAEREBMERAR AHAEAZ
AEFTNEFRE65E  ERBAAENEA -

XEERERAT 016E® 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 37. HEHESEE (&)

PERIOD (CONTINUED)

On 9 February 2017, the registered office address of the Company
was charged to P.O. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square,
Grand Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands. The principal share
registrar and transfer office of the Company was changed from
Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited to Tricor Services (Cayman Islands)
Limited at P.O. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands. The Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong is still maintained
by Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

On 15 February 2017, Yongsheng Dyeing entered into an asset
management agreement with LJZ Wealth Management and China
Merchant Bank Co. Limited Shanghai Branch (“CMB Shanghai”),
pursuant to which Yongsheng Dyeing agreed to participate in the
asset management plan operated by LJZ Wealth Management
and to deposit to the designated account with CMB Shanghai
an investment amount of RMB30,000,000. The term is eight
months from the date of depositing the investment amount into the
designated custodian account with CMB Shanghai.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B0 I RR M
31 December 2016 —E—A~F+=-A=+—H
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. &A BB IR R &
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the AARPRREPRTBEARARAKROERDT
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR HRE 230,214 233,464
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEELLE 230,214 233,464
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables ~ FafI 7 HE %4 &
H b fE W5k IE 141 175
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEEY 3,251 4,969
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS MEEEMRE 3,392 5,144
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEARE
Other payables, advances from HMENFIE BEFRERK
customers and accruals JEETRIA 1,017 1,200
Due to subsidiaries JEASHBT B A ) FRIE 18,662 18,432
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES mBNBERE 19,679 19,632
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MENBEFE (16,287) (14,488)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ERRE A& 213,927 218,976
NET ASSETS FAE 213,927 218,976
EQUITY =
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRARHE AEMLERS
OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital [N 3,165 3,165
Share premium RS 17 5 (B 195,859 216,330
Other reserves HifFEE 14,903 (519)
TOTAL EQUITY S 4AEE 213,927 218,976
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=X s T EL
31 December 2016 —ZE—XF+-HF=+—H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY(CONTINUED)

38. RABWHMBMRREK (F)

Note: B at
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIREEORENT
Foreign Equity-
currency settled
Share Share Accumulated  translation arrangement
capital premium losses* reserve* reserve*  Total equity
MERE EREE
BA& R EE EE e RERE  BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AR%ETn  ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-H1%-F—H 3,165 235,512 (8,551) (4,486) - 225,640
Loss for the year FNER - - (4,620) - - 4,620)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZERA:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBHELEE
translation of foreign operations - - - 12,949 - 12,949
Total comprehensive income for the year EREARALE - - (4,620) 12,949 - 8,329
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company AR AR ES TR & - (19,182) - - = (19,182)
Equity-settled share option arrangements Wit E ER gL - - - - 4,189 4189
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE-RF+-A=1t-Hk
ZE-R"¥-A-H 3,165 216,330 (13,171) 8,463 4,189 218,976
Loss for the year FREE - - (6,949) = = (5,949)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREBRERA:
Exchange differences on MEENEBNERER
translation of foreign operations - - - 13,546 - 13,546
Total comprehensive income for the year FREARNEE - - (5,949) 13,546 - 7,507
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ARG RS KA - (20,471) - - - (20,471)
Equity-settled share option arrangements Rt SRR ER - - - - 7,825 7,825
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-"$+-A=t-A 3,165 195,859 (19,120) 22,009 12,014 213,927

*

These reserve accounts comprise the other reserves of
RMB14,903,000 (2015: RMB(519,000)) in the statement of
financial position of the Company.

* ZERBEREARAFEMRNEANEM
A RE14,903,0007T (ZB—HF: AR
#(519,000)7T) °

39. #EFHRE

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

39.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 23 March 2017.

B RER _E—+tF A+ =ZAEEE
GHLE R
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFEBEHRE

RESULTS E

For the year ended 31 December

BEY-RA=+-HLEE

Adjusted
2016 2015 2014 *2013 *2012
—E-RE “E-0F —E-mF ZE-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AREFR ARETR ARBTR
Revenue from continuing operations 5 @& & £ % W& 580,651 491,165 486,361 1,767,423 2,210,853
Gross profit from continuing BELSEEREA
operations 167,205 141,423 121,053 128,837 109,145
Operating profit mE R 111,632 83,346 75,949 85,732 80,387
Finance costs BERAK (1,350) (975) (3,018) (20,630) (41,339
Profit before tax BRB AR R 110,282 82,371 72,931 65,102 39,048
Income tax expense FrEasimx (21,7111) (18,578) (13,582) (16,577) (6,061)
Profit from continuing operations 7 B 3 S & £ 1R 88,571 63,793 59,349 48,525 32,087
Gain/(loss) for a discontinued RIEEEEBKE
operation (B#]) - 363 (2,315) = =
Profit for the year FRHEF 88,571 64,156 57,034 48,525 32,987
Attributable to: BAT AR -
Shareholders of the Company ARERR 79,128 56,230 47,897 40,024 23,173
Non-controlling interests FERER 9,443 7,926 9,137 8,501 9,814
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (RMB cents per share) EX(BRARYD) 19.8 14.1 12.0 129 7.7
Diluted (RMB cents per share) 8% (BRARED) 19.7 14.0 12.0 12.9 7.7
* The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive * —ENENEHEERAEMEERARE THA

B DRAFELEEB R LB ETY (%
BRMENAE) AR T ER T KL EH
BERRFEMNLBRET-

income in 2014 has been adjusted to show the discontinued operation
separately from continuing operations as disclosed in note 11 of
financial statements. Earlier years comparative figures have not been
adjusted due to impracticability.
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Five-year Financial Summary
EFEMBEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE “E-0F —E-mF —T-=F 2=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AREF ARETR ARBTR
Non-current assets ERBEE 188,299 182,954 179,863 178,423 190,113
Current assets RBEE 484,533 363,716 368,784 545,028 891,166
Total assets mEE 672,832 546,670 548,647 723,451 1,081,279
Current liabilities hEBaE (158,387) (110,970) (166,084) (368,178) (829,977)
Non-current liabilities kRBaE (17,232 (15,608) (12,325) (38,132) (59,970)
Total liabilities BEME (175,619) (126,578) (178,409) (406,310) (889,947)
EQUITY v
Equity attributable to AARIRREG R
shareholders of the Company 448,068 381,470 339,942 292,507 175,199
Non-controling interests s 49,145 38,622 30,296 24,634 16,133
Total equity EReE 497,213 420,092 370,238 317,141 191,332

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19 April
2012 and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been prepared
as if the current group structure had been existed throughout the year.

The financial result of the Company for the year ended 31 December

2012 and financial position as at 31 December 2012 is extracted from the
Company’s IPO Share Offer prospectus dated 15 November 2013.
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